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Independent Auditor's Reoort

Board of Trustees
Vernon College
Vernon, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vernon College, as well as its discretely presented
component unit, Vernon College Foundation, lncorporated, as of and for the years ended August 31 , 201g and
2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies useO anO
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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Opinions

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of Vernon College and its discretely presented component unit, Vernon College Foundation,
lnc., as of August 31,2018 and2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Ghange in Accounting Principle

As described in Note A to the financial statements, in 2018, the College adopted new accounting guidance,
GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Ceporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. Our opinion is not modifled with reipect to this matter.

Other Matters

Req u i red Su ppleme ntary I nformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management,s
discussion and analysis on pages 5 - 10, the schedule of college's share of pension Liability -leacher
Retirement System of Texas, the Schedule of College's Pension Contributions - Teacher Retirement System of
Texas, the Schedule of College's Share of OPEB Liability - Employee Retirement System of Texas, and the
Schedule of College's OPEB Contributions - Employee Retirement System of Texis on pages 41 - 44 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United states of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Vernon College's basic financial statements. The other supplementary information and statistical
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 1nancial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, lJniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federat Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The other supplementary information, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and schedule of
expenditures of state awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate direcly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information direcfly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial statementi
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. ln our opinion, the other supplementary information, schldule of expenditures of
federal awards and schedule of expenditures of state awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the financial statements as a whole.

The statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures apptied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Govern ment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 19, 2018,
on our consideration of Vernon College's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Vernon College's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

t a6, ?d.J.*^,'10^;*{ : 4!n ;*u,Pc

EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

December 19, 2018
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Business Office VsaaoFt.Wtcnm ftus www. vernoncol lege. edu

Vernon Campus

4400 College Drive

Vernon, TX 76384

944.552.6291

Cenlury City Center

4105 MaplewoodAve.
Wichita Falls, TX 76308

940.696.8752

Skills Training Center

2813 Central Expressway E

Wichita Falls, TX 76302

940.766.3369

Sheppard Learning Center

426 Sth Avenue, Suite 8

Sheppard AFB, TX 76311

940.855.2203

3,362,397
2,285,000
1,940,229

681,113
3,810,763

338,1 61

1,530,000
21,099,627

Seymour Learning Center

200 Stadium Drive

Seymour, TX 76380

940.889.3133

Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section of Vernon College's annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the
College's financial performance during the fiscal year ended August 31, 2018. please read it in
conjunction with the College's basic financial statements and notes, which follow this section.
Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of the information in this section rests with the College,s
management.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statement presentation is mandated by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34. For financial statement purposes, the College is coniidered a special-purpose
government engaged only in businesstype activities. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Coilege
are presented using the economic measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under t[e
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are reiognized as
obligations are incurred. Discussion of the College's basic financial statement follows.

The Sfafement of Net Position presents information on the College's assets and deferred outflows of
resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between these reported as
net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the College's financial position is improving or deteriorating.

2018 2017 2016
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable - net
lnventories
Other assets and prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Elrdowment i nvestments
Capital assets - net

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

$ 4,453,582 $

11,112,906 12,079,502 9,721,876

22,540,036 22567j8{ 22,946,144
33,652,942 35,047,290 32,668,020

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,906,952 1,828,475 2,069,397

2,418,620
738,463

3,502,241

$ 943,212
2,285,000
2,689,212

641,400
3,163,052

33,641
1,375,000

21,131,395

94,571
1,530,000

21,321,573

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net OPEB Obligation - current portion
Unearned revenues
Capital lease and bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities

863,236
60,822

5,682,759
739,734

81 3,1 67

7,596,057
753,393

593,504

5,529,685
713,423

7,346,551

5
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Noncurrent Liabilities
Deposits and accrued liabilities
Net Pension Obligation
Net OPEB Obligation
Capital lease and bonds payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflows Of Resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for student aid
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Net Position
. (14,068,265) (297,922)
$ 717,923 $ 13,7413'43

111,674
3,375,366

11,926,024
8,081 ,'t 83

100,818
4,O02,670

75,570
3,801,335

8,822 ,113 9,540,227
23,494,247

798
12,925,601
22,088,218

13 17 132
20,253,744

4,0O1,173 1,040,504 1,366,431

12,788,064
1,470,341

527,783

12,051,581
1,465,60'l

527,783

11,653,226
1,526,525

975,289
(1,037,798)

$ 13,117,242

Current assets decreased by $966,596 from 2017 to 2018. The decrease is primarily the result of
drawing down 2018/2019 PELL later in current year than in the prior year which reduced cash balance at
year-end. This was partially offset by a substantial increase in accounts receivable from the Department
of Education and several state and local grants. Current assets increased by $2,357,626 from 2016 to
2017. The increase is largely due to drawing down 201712018 PELL funds from the Department of
Education earlier and a significant increase in prepaid expenses compared to prior years. Our new
accounting system makes it easier to prepay expenses rather than holding invoices and paying them in
early September.

Capital assets, net of depreciation, have been gradually decreasing since 2014 as a result of lower capital
spending and an increase in depreciation expense attributed to significant capital investments made
during 2012. We experienced a modest increase lrom2017 to2018 due to some significant capital grant
expenditures and the purchase of the Bi-Fork Baptist building which adjoins our campus on the north
side.

Due to the implementation of GASB 68 related to recognition of the College's proportionate share of the
TRS pension liability, and GASB 75 related to recognition of the College's proportionate share of Other
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) the College recorded deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to actuarial assumptions and contributions made.

Current liabilities decreased by $1,816,066 from 2017 to 2018. This was the reversal of the large increase
seen from 2016to2017. Current liabilities increased by $2,326,005 from 2016to2017. This is due to
the early draw down of PELL funds mentioned earlier. The draw down is classified as deferred revenue.
ln earlier years, the trend has been for current liabilities to fluctuate modestly year to year due to timing of
enrollment, similar to the fluctuations in current assets.

Prior to 2018, noncurrent liabilities had shown a steady decrease due to scheduled payments on capital
leases and bonds. ln 2018, the College recorded $11,926,024 of Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB) due to the adoption of GASB 75.

The net position section of this report has three components, net investment in capital assets, restricted
(nonexpendable or expendable), and unrestricted. Net position restricted for student aid has stabilized
after several years of declines related to endowed scholarship funds being transferred to the Vernon
College Foundation at donors' requests to try to increase earnings.

Unrestricted net position, which shows a negative balance of ($14,068,265) includes a prior period
adjustment of ($t3,922,157) related to adoption of GASB 75. Excluding the prior period adjustment,
unrestricted net position improved by $221,814.
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The Sfafement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes rn Nef Position is a statement of activities.
Revenues are presented as operating (program) revenue and non-operating (general) revenue.
Expenses are reported by function. Functional expenses are defined as the "direct" expense specifically
associated with a function and would not include allocations of indirect expenses. The functional
categories for expenses are instruction, public service, academic support, student services, institutional
support, operation and maintenance of plant, scholarships and fellowships, auxiliary enterprises, and
depreciation expense.

2018 2017 2016
REVENUES
Operating Revenues:
Tuition and fees (net of discounts of $6,526,917,

$6,61 6,975 and $6,241,565, respectively)
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Non-governmental grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
lnvestment program (program restricted)
Auxiliary enterprises (net of discounts of $846,193,

$814,520 and $821 ,043, respectively)
General operating revenues

Total Operating Revenues

1,O30,784 1,315,827 1,247,495

9,527,592 8,540 ,019 8,059,400

$ 5,183,006
943,769
874,916

1 ,154.111
113,201
17,485

$ 4,919,921
854,921
425,429
887,698
111,462

13,913

$ 4,589,733
761,962
327,546

1,0O5,O74
122,O03

5,587

210 320 10 848

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses:
lnstruction
Public services
Academic support
Student seryices
lnstitutional support
Operation of physical plant
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) :

State Appropriations
Property taxes for maintenance & operation
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Gifts
lnvestment income
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Lease income less lease expenses
Amortization of bond issue costs
lnterest and fees on capital related debt
Net Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

879 968 870 491
24,O57 ,404 22,788,247 22,707 ,381

('14,529,812) (14,248,22e) (4 ,647,981)

9J02,826
682,872

2,638,383
2,102,100
3,742,294
2,220,122

743,016
1,945,823

8,480,422
589,589

2,660,825
2,046,237
3,577,573
2,149,925

168,O17
2,245,168

8,456,979
520,316

2,687,735
2,023,111
3,591,913
2,130,759

320,362
2,111,369

864,837

7,344,694
2,710,670
5,448,482

230,737
63,018

(50,582)
26,016

(47,692)

7,068,556
2,735,221
5,167,989

217,359
29,946
(4,381)
21,839

(47,6e2)
(310,808)

6,935,691
2,718,006
5j20,750

203,655
11,506
(3,672)
17,908

e32 ,494\ (352,O74\
15,492,849 14,878,O29 14,651,770

Change in Net Position $ 963,037 $ 629,801 $ 3,789

Operating revenues are separated into several categories. Student tuition and fees remained a major
source of revenue for 2018. Net tuition and fee revenues had been in a slow decline the past few years
as a result of decreasing enrollment before rebounding to show an increase of $263,085 from 2017 to
2018 and $330,188 from 2016 to2017. State grants and contracts increased by $449,487 lrom2017 to
2018 thanks to a new Skills Development grant and a Nursing lnnovations grant, after a modest increase
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from 2016 to 2017. The effective earnings rate for investments has increased substantially as the
College has been able to take advantage of much higher interest rates through TexPool. Net auxiliary
enterprises revenue (mainly bookstore sales) declined by $285,043 compared to last year. A large part of
the decline was due to problems with one of our book vendors not delivering textbooks in a timely
manner.

Operating expenses increased by $1,269,157 compared to 2017. The significant increase can be
attributed to an increase in state and local grants, an increase in scholarships and a 3o/o pay increase for
all employees. 2017 saw an increase of $80,866 compared to 2016. The increase was made up of
several factors. A 1.50% salary increase for all employees and increases in health insurance premiums
contributed to increased operating cost while scholarships, those not credited directly to tuition and fees,
saw a significant decrease compared to 2016 as Pellawards were reduced significantly.

Property tax revenue remained steady as the Board of Trustees continues to hold the line at the effective
rate. The tax rate of the district remains one of the highest among community colleges in the state.

The primary purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide relevant information about the cash
receipts and cash payments of an entity during the fiscal period. The statement explains the changes
during the period in cash and cash equivalents regardless of whether there are restrictions on their use.
The total amount of cash and cash equivalents at the beginning and end of the period shown in the
statement are easily traceable to similarly titled items or subtotals shown on the Statement of Net
Position. First, the statement reports the effects during the period of operations, capital financing, non-
capital financing, and investing transactions. Secondly, related information reports the investing, capital,
and financing transactions that affect financial position but do not directly affect cash flows during the
period. Finally, a reconciliation of operating income to net cash from operating activities is provided.

2018 2017 2016
Cash Flows From:

Operating activities

Noncapital fi nancing actiMties

Capital and related financing activities

lnvesting activities

$ (13,659,131)

13,913,855

(1,997,093)

2,529,034

$ (10,201,676)

14,502,236

(1,689,570)

51,795

$ (12,884,600)

12,569,049

(1,364,958)

804,414

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

786,665 2,662,775 (876,095)

3,700,558 1,037,783 1,913,878

$ 4,487 ,223 $ 3,700,558 $ 1,037,783

The primary cash receipts from operating activities consist of tuition, fees, grants and contracts. Cash
outlays include payment of wages, benefits, supplies, and scholarships.

State allocations, Federal Title lV Grants, and property taxes are the main sources of noncapital financing
activities. This source of revenue is categorized as non-operating even though the College's budget
depends on these sources to continue the current level of operations of the physical plant and
educational and administrative departments.

The main capital and related financing activities include construction and renovation projects and
payments on capital debt. Capital purchases for 2017-2018 included the Bi-Forks Baptist buitding,
continuing investment in our new Enterprise Resource Planning/Student lnformation System (ERP/SIS),
two adult simulators, spray foam and insulate the entry dome and apply two inch overlay to part of the
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parking lot at Century City, new scoreboard at the softball field, upgrading ITV equipment in five
classrooms, a new van for general travel and a new Tahoe for the police academy. Some of the capital
purchases during the 2016-2017 school year include a new heater for the pool in the King Center, a new
zero turn mower for the Vernon campus, continuing investments in our new Enterprise Resource
Planning/Student lnformation System (ERP/S|S), upgrading equipment in two of our ITV classrooms,
additional security cameras at the dorm, repaving a portion of the Century City Center parking lot and
several Perkins funded training machines. Capital purchases for2015-2016 included initial payments on
our new ERP/SIS, a new van for the Century City maintenance department, upgrading the sprinkler
system for the baseball field, a new A/C unit at the Skills Center and several new Perkins funded training
machines. Principal paid on debt was $754,589 for 2018, $678,144 for 2O1T and $728,144 tor 2016.
lnterest and fees paid on capital debt totaled $232,494 in 2018, $310,808 in 2017 and $352,07 4 in 2016.

lnvesting activities reported include lease income from the King Farm in excess of the related expenses
of $26,016 for 2018, $21,839 for 2017 and $17,908 for 2016. lnvesting activities also reftects lnterest
income earned on investments.

Reporting of Component Unit

Reported within this report is Exhibit 1A, 2A, and 3A. Vernon College Foundation, lncorporated was
established as a separate nonprofit organization in 1985. The unit raises funds to provide student
scholarships and departmental grants. Exhibit 1A reports net assets increased by $79,S74 to $5,188,942
at the close of 2018. Gifts and contributions including transfers from the College Endowment Fund,
realized gains, and unrealized gains or losses on investments are the major sources of revenue.
Operating expense, investment advisory fees, and transfers to Vernon College are the main expenses.

Analysis of the College's Overall Financial position

The overall financial position of the College is very good. The Sfaf.sfical Supptement Section of this
report reflects many positive changes. Fall credit head count enrollment had grown from 2,095 in 2000 to
a high of 3,247 in 2011 but had slowly declined to 2,891 in the Fall o12015 before rebounding to 3,008 in
the Fall of 2017. Trends in student tuition and fee revenue as well as state appropriations are reported on
statistical supplement 2.

The College taxing district is Wilbarger County, Texas. Ad valorem taxes are assessed and collected by
the Wilbarger County Tax Assessor/Collector for the College based on the valuation of real property and
minerals on January 1. Taxable values are determined by the Wilbarger County Appraisal District.
Taxable values have been gradually trending upward with an increase lrom 2007 to 2015 of
$321,977,600 or 35.19% before taking a downward turn in 2016, falling $63,77g,4g0. Taxable values
showedadecreaseof $14,200,620in2018. Theapprovedtaxrateper$.l00of valuationhasdecreased
from a high of $.24993 in 2005 to $.23237 in 2018.

Significant Capital Assets and Long-term Debt Activity

As mentioned previously in the discussion of the statement of net position, the College's investment in
capital assets, net of related debt increased by $1,134,838 from $11,653,226 in 2016 to $12,79g,064 in
2018. This increase is a combination of capitalizing additions purchased from current funds during the
year, recording depreciation expense and payment of longterm debts. More details on the College's
accounting policies for capital assets and current year activity can be found in the footnotes to the
financial statements.

The College's total long-term debt increased from $13,417,132to $23,4g4,427, or $1O,OT7,2gS from 2016
until 2018. The increase is the result of a prior period adjustment of $13,9g2,157 in 2018 to record
implementation of GASB 75 to reflect our share of Other Post-Employment Benefits (OpEB) and paying
scheduled debt payments. Payments totaling $944,345, of which $73g,748 is principal, are scheduted to
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be made in 2019 under the College's revenue bonds and capital lease. Moody's rates the College as A-3
stable. The notes to the financial statements contain additional information concerning the debt structures
for the College.

Discussion of Current Known Facts, Decisions, or Conditions

Enrollment for the fall of 2011 was at an all{ime record of 3,247. Since then we have experienced a
gradual decline with enrollment for lall2015 totaling 2,891 before rebounding somewhat to 3,008 for fall
2017. lndications are that most rural Community Colleges in Texas have seen similar fluctuations.

Contacting the College's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the College's finances and to demonstrate the College's accountability for the
money it receives. lf you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
the College's Business Office.
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Vernon Gollege
Exhibit 1

Statements of Net Position
August 31,2018and2017

ASSETS
Gurrent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short{erm investments
Accounts receivable (net)
Deferred charges
lnventories
Accrued interest
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Endowed lnvestments
Capital assets (net)
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Refunding loss
OPEB plan related deferred outflows of resources
Pension plan related deferred outflows of resources
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued compensable absences - current portion
Net OPEB obligation - current portion
Deposits
Unearned revenues
Capital leases payable - current portion
Bonds payable - current portion
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued compensable absences
Net OPEB plan obligation
Net pension plan obligation
Capital leases payable
Bonds payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources
OPEB related deferred inflows of resources
Pension plan related deferred inflows of resources
Total Deferred lnflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable:
Student Aid

Expendable:
Student Aid
Debt Service

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

605,000 590,000
7,346,551 9,162,617

1',t1,674
11,926,024
3,375,366

100,818

8,081,183

4,002,670
133,748

8,688,365
12,925,601

22,088,218

23,494 ,247

30,840,798

2,650,348
1,350,825
4,001 ,173

1,040,504
1,040,504

12,788,064 12,051,581

1,381,586 1,390,398

2018

$ 4,453,582

2,418,620
3,136,219

738,463
9,927

356,095
11,112,906

33,641
1,375,000

21 ,1 31 ,395
22,540,036

33,652,942

477,586
328,549

'l,100,817
1,906,952

583,322
260,572

60,822
't9,342

5,682,759
134,734

88,755
527,783

(14,068,265)

_E_____!lpn_

2017

$ 3,362,397
2,285,000
1,940,229
3,389,808

681,113

420,955
12,079,502

338,161
1,530,000

21 ,099,627
22,967,788

35,047,290

527,460

1 ,301 ,015
1,828,475

558,994
235,241

18,932
7,596,057

163,393

75,203
527,783

(297,922)

$ 13,747,043

rhe Nofes to the Financialsfafemenfs are an integral part of the financiat statements.
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Vernon College
Exhibit 1A

Vernon College Foundation, lncorporated
Statements of Financial Position

August 31,2018 and 2017

2018 2017
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
lnvestments

Totalassets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Permanently restricted

$ 214,715
5,173,375

$ 137,257
4. 972,111

$ 5,388,090

$ 199,148

$ 5,109,368

$

683,715
4,505,227

677,410
4,431,959

Total net assets 5,188,942 5,109,368

Total liabilities and net assets _$_1!!!199_ $ 5,109,368

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Vernon Gollege
Exhibit 2

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Ghanges in Net position
For the Years Ended August 31,2019 and 2017

2018
REVENUES
Operating Revenues
Tuition and fees (net of discounts of $6,526,917 and

$6,61 6,975, respectively)
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Non-governmental grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
lnvestment income (program restricted)
Auxiliary enterprises (net of discounts of $846,193 and

$8 1 4,520, respectively)
General operating revenues
TotalOperating Revenues (Sch A)

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses
lnstruction
Public services
Academic support
Student services
lnstitutional support
Operation and maintenance of plant
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises
Depreciation
TotalOperating Expenses (Sch B)

Operating Loss

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
State Appropriations
Property taxes for maintenance & operation
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Gifts
lnvestment income
Loss on disposal of assets
Lease income
Operational costs of lease property
Amortization of bond issue cost
lnterest and fees on capital related debt

Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (Sch C)

Ghange in Net Position

Net Position
Beginning net position, as originally stated
Prior period adjustments
Beginning net position, as restated
Ending net position

879 968 870 491
24,057,404 788 247

(14,529,812) (14,248,228)

$ 5,183,006
943,769
874,916

1,154,111
113,201
17,485

1,030,784
210,320

9,527,592

9,102,826
682,872

2,638,383
2,102,100
3,742,294
2,220,122

743,016
1,945,823

15,492,849

963,037

13,747,043
(13,e92,157)

(24s,114)
$ 717,923

2017

$ 4,919,921
854,921
425,429
887,698
111,462

13,913

1,315,827
10,848

8,540 ,019

8,480,422
589,589

2,660,825
2,046,237
3,577,573
2,149,925

168,017
2,245,168

7,344,694
2,710,670
5,448,482

230,737
63,018

(50,582)
28,977
(2,e61)

(47,692)
(232,494)

7,068,556
2,735,221
5,167,989

217,359
29,946
(4,381)
24,788
(2,e4s)

(47,692)
(310,808)

14,878,029

629,801

13,117,242

13 117 242
13

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral paft of the financial statements
13
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Vernon Gollege
Exhibit 2A

Vernon Gollege Foundation, lncorporated
Statements of Activities

Forthe Years Ended August 31,2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Revenues and support:
Gifts and contributions
Silent auction
lnvestment income
Realized gains on investments
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Other income

Total revenues and support

Expenses:
Operating expenses
I nvestment advisory fees
Departmental Grants
Restricted Gifts transfer to Vernon College
Scholarship transfer

Total expenses

lncrease in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

$ 203,981
5,123

259,708
42,897

(60,909)

$ 332,257
5,137

187,761
4,456

265,500
6,5072 766

453,566 801 618

29,577
43,844
11,114
1,525

29,030
40,503
11,322

287 932 199,652

373 992 280,507

79,574

5,109,368

521,111

4,588,257

$ 5,109,368$ 5,188,942

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Vernon College
Exhibit 3

Statements of Gash Flows
For the Years Ended August 31,2018 and 2017

2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from students and other customers
Receipts of appropriations, grants and contracts
Other receipts
Payments to or on behalf of employees
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments of scholarships
Net cash used by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State allocations
Federal Title lV Grants
Property taxes for maintenance and operations
Gifts to endowment

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases and construction ofcapital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Amortization of bond issue cost
lnterest and fees paid on capital debt
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Lease income
Operating costs of lease property
Sales of short-term investments
lnvestment income
Net cash provided by investing activities

lncrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning ofyear
Cash and cash equivalents'end ofyear

Displayed as:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used
by operating activities:

Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:

Depreciation expense
Pension and OPEB adjustments
Payments for benefits made directly by state

(lncrease) decrease in current assets:
Accounts receivable, net (adjusted for non-operating items)
lnventories
Deferred charges
Prepaid assets

lncrease (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensable absences
Deferred revenues
Deposits

Net cash used by operating activities

$ 4,453,582
33,641

$ 4,487,223

$ (14,529,812) $ (14,248,228)

879,968
199,703

1,665,543

$ 6,128,518
1,046,880

105,763
(14,372,385)

(5,824,891)
(743,0161

(13,659,131)

5,509,341
5,465,546
2,708,231

230,737
1 3,913,855

(962,318)
(754,58e)
(47,6e2)

(232,494\
(1,997,093)

28,977
(2,e61)

2,440,000
63,018

2,529,034

786,665

3,700,558w

(333,1 33)
(57,350)
303,463

64,860

2017

$ 6,503,648
3,975,088

111,260
(14,022,528\
(6,601,127)

(168,017)
(10,201,676)

5,616,289
5,926,827
2,741,761

217,359
14,5Q2,236

(652,926)
(678,'t44)
(47,692)

(310,808)
(1,689,570)

24,788
(2,e49)

29 946
51 785

2,662,775

1,037 ,783
$ 3,700,558

$ 3,362,397
338,161

_q_9,?00F99_

491
487
267

870
58

,452

(16,3e5)
(3s,713)

(277,698)
(312,170)

24,328
36,187

(1,913,298)
410

$ (13,659,131)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral paft of the financial statements.

209,913
33,778

2,066,372
1,220

_w_q,201,6iQ-
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Vernon Gollege
Exhibit 3A

Vernon Gollege Foundation, lncorporated
Statements of Gash Flows

Forthe Years Ended August 31,2018 and 2017

2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts of gifts
Proceeds from Silent Auction
Other income
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Restricted Gifts transferred to Vernon College
Payment of scholarships and grants

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sales proceeds on sales of investments
Purchase of investments
lnvestment income

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

lncrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Cash flows from operating activities:
lncrease in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
lnvestment income
Realized gain on sale of investments
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments held
(lncrease) decrease in operating assets:

Pledges receivable
lncrease (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable
Net cash provided by operating activities

_$ 214,?15_ _$ 13?,25?

$ 79,574 $ 521,111

$ 203,981
5,123
2,766

(84,535)
(1,525)
88,784)
37 026

885,015
(1,104,291)

259,708
40,432

77,458

137,257

(259,708)
(42,8e7)
60,909

2017

$ 362,257
5,137
6,507

(86,285)

(199 ,652)
87 964

814,421
(1,068,137)

187 761
(65,955)

22,009

115 248

(187,761)
(4,456)

(265,500)

30,000

B7 964
199,148

$ 37,026

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of the financial statements
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VERNON COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31,2018 AND 2017

1. Reportinq Entity

The Wilbarger County Junior College District (Vernon College) was established in 1970, in accordance with the laws of
the State of Texas, to serve the educational needs of the public of Wilbarger County and surrounding communities.
Vernon College (College) is considered a special purpose, primary government according to the definition in
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity". While the
College receives funding from local, state and federal sources, and must comply with spending, reporting, and
recordkeeping requirements of these entities, it is not a component unit of any governmental entity.

Vernon College Foundation, lncorporated (Foundation) was established as a separate nonprofit organization in 1985 to
raise funds to provide student scholarships and assistance in the development and growth of the College. Under GASB
Statement No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units" as amended by GASB
Statement No.61, "The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus", an organization should be reported as a discretely
presented component unit if those entities raise and hold economic resources for the direct benefit of a government unit.
Accordingly, the Foundation's financial statements are included in the College's Annual Financial Report as a discretely
presented component unit.

2. Summarv of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies

A. Reporting Guidelines

The significant accounting policies followed by the College in preparing these financial statements are in
accordance with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board's Annual Financial Repofting Requirements for
Texas Public Community and Junior Colleges. The College applies all applicable GASB pronouncements. The
College is reported as a special-purpose government engaged in business-type activities.

B. Tuition Discounting

1. Texas Public Education Grants

Certain tuition amounts are required to be set aside for use as scholarships by qualifying students. This set
aside amount, called the Texas Public Education Grant (TPEG), is shown with tuition and fee revenue amounts
as a separate set aside amount (Texas Education Code $56.0333). When the award for tuition is used by the
student, the amount is recorded as tuition and a corresponding amount is recorded as a tuition discount. lf the
amount is dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.

2. Title lV, Higher Education Act (HEA) Program Funds

Certain Title lV HEA Program Funds are received by the College to pass through to the student. These funds
are initially received by the College and recorded as restricted revenue. When the student is awarded and
uses these funds for tuition and fees, the amounts are recorded as revenue and a corresponding amount is
recorded as a tuition discount. lf the amount is dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a
scholarship expense.

3. Other Tuition Discounts

The College awards tuition and fee scholarships from institutional funds to students who qualify. When these
amounts are used for tuition and fees, the amounts are recorded as tuition and fee revenue and a
corresponding amount is recorded as a tuition discount. lf the amount is dispersed directly to the student, the
amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.

C. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the College have been prepared on the accrual basis whereby all revenues are
recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they have been reduced to a legal or contractual
obligation to pay.
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VERNON COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31,2018 AND 2017

D. Budgetary Data

Each community college in Texas is required by law to prepare an annual operating budget of anticipated revenues
and expenditures forthe fiscal year beginning Septemberl. The college's Boardof Trustees adopts the budget,which is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. A copy of the approved budget and subsequent amendments
must be filed with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating board, Legislative Budget Board, Legislative Reference
Library, and Governor's office of Budget and pranning by December 1l

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The college's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Deferred Outflows

ln addition to assets, the College is aware that the statement of Net position will sometimes report a separatesection for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows ofresources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. Governments are permitted oniy to report deferred outflows incircumstances specifically authorized by the GASB. A typical deferreo' outflow for community colleges is a deferred
charge on refunding debt.

E

F

G. lnvestments

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 31 , Accounting and Financiat Reporting for certain lnvestments andExtemal lnvestment Pools, investments are reported at fair value. Fair values are baied on published market rates.Short{erm investments have an original maturity greater than three months but less than one year at the time ofpurchase' Long-term investments have an original maturity of greater than one year at the time of purchase.

H. OtherAssets

other assets include expenses paid in advance that pertain to the subsequent fiscal year. An example is pell grants
disbursed to students in August for fall classes.

l. lnventories

lnventories consist of bookstore stock. lnventories are valued at the lower of cost or market value under the first-in,first-out method and are charged to expense as consumed.

J. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
assets.

K. CapitalAssets

capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the date of donation. The college,s
capitalization policy includes real or personal property with a value equal to or greater than 95,000 and has anestimated useful life of greater than one year. The college reports depreciation under a single line item as abusiness-type unit' Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of theassets applying the half-year convention. The following lives are used:
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VERNON COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31,2018 AND 2017

Buildings
Land lmprovements
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles and Other Equipment
Telecommunications and Computer Equipment
Library Books

20-50 years
20 years
10 years
5 years

15 years

L Other Post-Employment Benefits (OpEB)

The fiduciary net position of the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS) State Retiree Health plan (SRHP)
has been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of
accounting. This includes, for purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to other post-employment benefits, oeEB expense, and information about
assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from SRHP's fiduciary net position. Benefit payments are recognized
when due and are payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

M. Pensions

The College participates in the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) Pension plan, a multiple-employer cost
sharing defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation. The fiduciary net position of the Teacher
Retirement System of Texas (TRS) has been determined on the flow of economic resources measurement focus
and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, and information
about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS's fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
lnvestments are reported at fair value.

N. Unearned Revenues

Tuition and fees of $5,115,262 and $5,300,995 and federal, state and local grants of $233,g61 and 91,966,g30have been reported as unearned revenues at August 31 ,2018 and 201i, respectively. Auxiliary enterprise
revenues, including meal and dorm rent, and other revenues unearned totaled $333,636 and $32g,252 at August
31 , 2018 and 2017, respectively.

O. Deferred lnflows

ln addition to liabilities, the College is aware that the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so is not recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. Governments are permitted only to report deferred inflows in circumstances
specifically authorized by the GASB.

P. lncome Taxes

The College is exempt from federal income taxes under lnternal Revenue Code Section 115, ,,lncome of States,
Municipalities, Etc.", although unrelated business income may be subject to income taxes under lnternal Revenue
Code Section 511(a)(2)(B), "lmposition of Tax on Unrelated Business lncome of Charitable, Etc. Organizations,,.
The College had no unrelated business tax liability for the years ended August31,2O1g and 2017.

The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under lnternal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

O. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions thatlffect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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VERNON COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31,2018 AND 2017

R. Operating and Non-Operating Revenue and Expense Policy

The College distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the College's principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues are tuition and related fees. The major non-operating revenues are state
allocations, federal revenues, property tax collections, and lease income. Operating expenses include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.

The food service operation is not performed by the College, but has been contracted out to a company under an
annual agreement. The College pays the contractor a per-meal rate with no guarantee or commitment and the
contractor uses the College's cafeteria and dining hall to conduct its operations.

S. Net Position

1. Net lnvestment in Capital Assets

This item consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets net of accumulated depreciation that are
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted Nonexpendable

These are net position that are required to be retained in perpetuity, such as permanent endowments or
permanent fund principal amounts. Some examples of nonexpendable assets are scholarships, fellowships,
and research.

3. RestrictedExpendable

These are net position that are restricted due to constraints placed on the assets either by external creditors
such as debt covenants, grantors, or imposed by laws or regulations of other governments. This does not
include net position restricted by the College's governing board. Some examples are scholarships and
fellowships, research, instructional department uses, loans, capital projects, and debt service.

4. Unrestricted Net Position

This item consists of net position not meeting the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."
The distribution of this net position must not be presented on the face of the financial statement, but may be
presented in the notes. When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted
resources, the College's policy is to first apply the expense towards restricted resources and then towards
unrestricted resources.

3. Authorizedlnvestments

The College is authorized to invest in obligations and instruments as defined in the Public Funds lnvestment Act (Sec.
2256.001Texas Government Code). Such investments include (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies, (2)
direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, (3) obligations of political subdivisions rated not less than A by a
national investment firm, (4) certificates of deposit, and (5) other instruments and obligations authorized by statute.

4. Deposits and lnvestments

The College's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of the Texas Public Funds lnvestment
Act. The College's depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the College's agent bank approved pledged
securities in an amount sufficient to protect College funds on a day{o-day basis during the period of the contract. The
pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit
lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance. The College also utilizes the Texas Local Government lnvestment Pool
(TexPool) which was authorized under and created pursuant to the Act.
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VERNON COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31,2018 AND 2017

Cash Deposits

At August 31 , 2018 and 2017 ' the carrying amount of the College's deposits (cash, certificates of deposit, and interest-
bearing savings accounts incruded in temporary investments) was 96g6,069 and $356,623, respectivery. The bank
balance was $651,377 and $438,219, respectively. The College's cash deposits at August 31,201g and 2017 were
entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the College's agent bJnk in the College,s name.

lnvestments

The College is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, rhe Public Funds lnvestment Act (Act) to adopt,
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must address the following areas: (1) safety of principal and
liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (S) expected rates of return, (6)
maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowej
based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation
preferences for certificates of deposit.

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the auditof the basic financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management reports and
establishment of appropriate policies, the College adhered to the requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment
practices of the College were in accordance with local policies.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the College. These include, with certain
restrictions, (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its
agencies, (3) obligations of political subdivisions rated not less than A by a national investment rating firm, (4)
certificates of deposit, and (5) other instruments and obligations authorized by statute.

The College's investments at August 31 ,201g and 2017 are as follows:

August 31.2018
Weighted
Maturity Fair

$
5.176.154

$5J76;131

2018

$5J2337f,

$5ArcJ7tr

Auorrst 31.2017
Weighted
Maturity
(Months)

9.37
1

Va lue
Fair

lnvestment or lnvestment Tvpe (Months) Value

$3,815,000
4.057.181

$7j22J81

The Foundation's investments at August 31 ,201g and 2017 are shown below:

Mutual funds

Total aggregate cost

Public Funds lnvestment pools
Public funds investment pools in Texas (Pools) are established under the authority of the lnterlocal Cooperation Act,
Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of the Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code. ln addition to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, the Act
requires Pools to: 1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and oiher persons who do not have a
business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; 2) maintain a continuous rating of no lower than
AAA or A/M-m or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and 3) maintain the market
value of its underlying investment portfolio within one half of one percent of the value of its shares. The College
participates in the TexPool lnvestment pool further described as follows:

Certificates of deposit
TexPool

Totals
;

2017

$4g2J1L

$4.9'41L
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VERNON COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31,2018 AND 2017

The TexPool Prime lnvestment Pool (TexPool) is a local government investment pool organized in conformity with
the lnterlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and operates under the Public Funds
lnvestment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. The State Comptroller of Public Accounts oversees
TexPool. Federated lnvestors, lnc. is the administrator and investment manager of TexPool under a contract with
the State Comptroller. ln accordance with the Public Funds lnvestment Act, the State Comptroller has appointed the
TexPool lnvestment Advisory Board to advise with respect to TexPool. The board is composed equally of
participants in TexPool Portfolios and other persons who do not have a business relationship with TexPool
Portfolios and are qualified to advise in respect to TexPool Portfolios. The Advisory Board members review the
investment policy and management fee structure. TexPool is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. All investments are
stated at amortized cost, which usually approximates the market value of the securities. The stated objective of
TexPool is to maintain a stable average $1.00 per unit net asset value; however, the $1.00 net asset value is not
guaranteed or insured. The financial statements can be obtained from the Texas Trust Safekeeping Trust Company
website at www.ttstc.org.

Analysis of Specific Deposit and lnvestment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the College was exposed to the following specific
investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The ratings
of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end,
the College was not significantly exposed to credit risk.

b. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are
uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the College's name.

lnvestment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the
name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department or agent but
not in the College's name.

At year end, the College was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

c. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. At year end,
the College was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. lnterest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the
College was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the College
was not exposed to foreign currency risk.
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lnvestment Accountinq Policv

The College's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-earning
investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-
based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit
standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value
unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term" refers to investments which have
a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means that the investment's value
does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating
interest-earning investment contracts.

Fair Value of Financial lnstruments

lf the inputs used to measure the financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is
based on the lowest level input that is significant to their fair value measurement of the instrument.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
government can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

a

a

The fair value hierarchy of investments at August 31 ,2018 follows.

Auousf

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

31.2018

Total

$5J73J7f,

2017
Total

Mutual funds $u73375 $__ _:G $__.G $4Ju2J17

The College values its TexPool balances at net asset value per uniUshare.

5. Permanent Endowment

The College maintains a permanent endowment fund for funding scholarships to the College's students. The
endowment consists of numerous individual gifts from various individuals and groups and all proceeds are held as cash
and cash equivalents or invested in certificates of deposit. All interest income earned on the investments is available for
awarding scholarships to eligible Vernon College students. These amounts are included in restricted cash and cash
equivalents and endowed investments on the statement of net position.

6. Propertv Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and business
personal property located in the College in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which imposed.
On January 1 of each yeat, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest
ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available when they become due or past due and receivable
within the current period.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables are based upon historical experience in collecting property taxes.
Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off, but the College is prohibited from writing
off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.
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The following are additional disclosures relative to property taxes for the years ended August 31, 201g and 2017:

Net Assessed Valuation:

Net assessed valuation for year ended August 31
Gross assessed valuation
Less exceptions or abatements

2018
$1,898,393,160
( 739.419.390)

Allowance

$ 963,389

75,926

17

$1,910,924,250
( 737.749.860)

Net

Net assessed valuation $!158-9Z3JZ0 $1JZ3JZt39o

Tax Rate Per $100 Valuation:

Year Ended August 31.2017
Current Debt

Operations Service Totals
$1.00000 $ ^00000 $1300000
$ .229652 $.00000 $ .22s652

Property taxes levied for the years ended August 31,2018 and 2017 amounted to $2,6g1,gg0 and $2,695,9gg,respectively.

Tax Collections:

Authorized
Assessed

Current taxes
Delinquent taxes
Penalties and interest

Total collections

Students
Federal grants
State/local grants and contracts
Property taxes
Others

Year Ended August 31,201g
Current Debt

Operations Service Totals
$1.000000 $ ^00000 $1^000000
$ .232367 $.00000 $ 2323GT

Year Ended Auoust 31. 201g
Current Debt

Operations Service Totals
$2,645,921 $ -- $2,64s,s2126,311 26,311

22.626

Year Ended Auoust 31,2017
Current Debt

Operations Service Totals
$2,648,263 $ -- $2,648,26338,849 38,849

15.005

$2S%*858

current tax collections for the years ended August 31 ,2018 and 2017 were 9g.29% and gg.23%, respectively, ofthe current year levy' Allowances for uncollectible taxes are based on historical experience in collecting propertytaxes The use of property taxes is restricted to either maintenance and operations or general obligation debtservice.

7 . Disagoregation of Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable' net of allowances for uncollectibles, at August 31 ,201g and 2017 consisted of the following

Auoust 31, 2018

Gross

$1,658,248
553,949
290,725
164,479
790.534

$ 694,859
553,949
290,725

88,553
790,534

$3J52835 $l_039315 $231,S*620
Totals
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Students
Federal grants
State/local grants and contracts
Property taxes
Others

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Land improvements
Furniture, machinery, vehicles and
other equipment

Telecommunications and computer equipment
Library books

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Land improvements
Furniture, machinery, vehicles and

other equipment
Telecommunications and computer equipment
Library books

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

VERNON COLLEGE
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Gross Allowance

$ 880,723

Net

69,515

$ 771,276
565,033
116,874
86,114

400.932

St'}lr0229

lncreases Decreases

$--$--
319,923
319,923

73,1 33
104,661

32,260

$1,651,999
565,033
116,874
155,629
400,932

Totals $2S90ltGZ $-950238

8. Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the years ended August 31 ,2018 and 2017 was as follows:

August 31,2018

Beginning
Balances

$ 2,812,791
367.644

3,180,435

22,286,942
2,035,144

3,795,219
1,682,563
1.189.192

30.989.060

7,762,228
883,624

2,232,265
1,241,O52

950.699
13,069,868
17.919.192

283,019
166,395

15,187
642.395

462,124
78,279

273,370
49,444
16.751

879,968
( 237.573)

40,258
227,156

36,233
204,440

249.092
50,582

2,469,402
1,086,056

967.450
13.700.744
17,631.O37

Ending
Balances

$ 2,812,791
687.567

3,500,358

22,327,815
2,139,805

4,037,980
1,621,802
1.204.379

299.674 31.331.781

8,419 8,215,933
961,903

$21p99*622 g!2J50 $_50"582 $2t[rt395
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Auqust 31, 2017

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings
Land improvements
Furniture, machinery, vehicles and
other equipment

Telecommunications and computer equipment
Library books

Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation :

Buildings
Land improvements
Furniture, machinery, vehicles and
other equipment

Telecommunications and computer equipment
Library books

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

VERNON COLLEGE
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Beginning
Balances lncreases Decreases

Beginning
Balances

$ 9,250,000
28,365

297,141
336,059

$-9-9_tt"565

Beginning
Balances

$ 9,805,000
30,547

41 8,1 03
302.281

$ 2,812,791
175.505

2,988,296

22,285,013
1,938,525

3,773,396
1 ,383,1 30
1.174.268

30,554.332

7,302,303
810,636

1,978,082
1,197,025

933.009
12.221.055
18.333.277

$2132152i

335,273

$=331223

lncreases

312.980

$312*980

$--
367.644
367.644

5,723
96,619

44,088
299,433

14.924
460.787

461,564
72,988

274,221
44,027
17,690

870,490
( 409J03)

Decreases
$ 590,000

2,182
162,407
299.086

Decreases
$ 555,000

2,182
120,962
279.202

$--
175,505
175.505

3,794

22,265

26.059

1,639

20,038

21.677
4.382

Ending
Balances

$ 8,660,000
26,1 83

134,734
372.246

Ending
Balances

$ 9,250,000
28,365

297,141
336.059

Ending
Balances

$ 2,812,791
367.644

31

22,286,942
2,035,144

3,795,219
1,682,563
1.189.192

30.989.060

7,762,228
883,624

2,232,265
1,241,O52

950,699
13,069,868
17.919.192

134,734
260.572

Amounts
Due Within
One Year
$ 590,000

163,393
235.241

Capital assets, net

9. Lonq-termObliqations

A. Long-term Obligation Activity

Revenue bonds
Premium on bonds
Capital leases
Compensated absences

Totals

Auqust 31,2017

Revenue bonds
Premium on bonds
Capital leases
Compensated absences

c_42,059) grZ9S87 $21099*622

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year
ended August 31 , 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Auqust 31.2018

lncreases

Amounts
Due Within
One Year
$ 605,000$

$l-053-675 $-9;193J163 $l-000306

$

Totals u_0s55831

26
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B. Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at August 31 ,2018 are as follows

Year Endinq August 31. Princioal lnterest ls

Totals $8J94J3r $1262fi6 $tlJ5tuZA

C. Revenue Bonds Payable

The Wilbarger County Junior College District Consolidated Fund Revenue lmprovement and Refunding Bonds,
Series 2010 were issued to refund outstanding bonds and provide the College with approximately 95,000,000 of
additional funds to renovate the College's Century City Center in Wichita Falls, Texas. The bonds are payable over
20 years through August 31, 2030 with interest rates ranging from 2.OOo/o to 4.00%. The sources of revenue for debt
service include, as necessary, (1) tuition, (2) building use fees, (3) student service fees, (4) other fees (5) gross
revenues of the Auxiliary Enterprise Fund and (6) all investment earnings of the College lav'rfully available for such
purpose.

The Wilbarger County Junior College District Consolidated Fund Revenue Refunding Bond Series 2016 were
issued to pay off the remaining balance of the 2004 Taxable Series and refinance the callable portion of the 2010
Refunding Series. The bonds are payable over 20 years through August 31 , 2030 and shall bear interest at a rate
of 2.33%. The sources of revenue for debt service include, as necessary, ('1) tuition, (2) building use fees, (3)
student service fees, (4) other fees (5) gross revenues of the Auxiliary Enterprise Fund and (6) all investment
earnings of the College lawfully available for such purpose.

Debt service requirements for the College's outstanding bonds at August 31 ,2018 are as follows

Year Endino Auqust 31, lnterest Totals

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-28
2029-30

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-28
2029-30

$ 739,734
625,000
880,000
665,000
680,000

3,655,000
1,550,000

$ 605,000
625,000
880,000
665,000
680,000

3,655,000
1,550,000

$ 205,598
185,342
164,525
144,868
129,199
397,206

35.998

$ 202,870
185,342
164,525
144,868
129,199
397,206

35,998

$ 945,332
810,342

1,044,525
809,868
809,199

4,052,206
1.585.998

$ 807,870
810,342

1,044,525
809,868
809,'199

4,052,206
1,585,998

Totals $8S60J00 $1260J08 $9*920*aAS

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the bond indentures.
that the College is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Management has indicated

D. Capital Leases

The Public Property Finance Act gives the College authority to enter into capital leases for the acquisition of
personal property. Through August 31,2018, the College has acquired $1,644,995 in equipment through capital
leases.
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Commitments under capitalized lease agreements provide for minimum future rental payments as of August 31,
2018 as follows:

Year Endinq August 3'1 ,

2019
Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest

$137,461
137,461

L__2Jn

Present value of minimum lease payments $134fi4

The interest rate on the capital leases is 3.94%

E. CompensatedAbsences

1. Vacation Leave

Full-time employees earn annual leave from 8 lo 12 hours per month depending on the number of years
employed with the College. The College's policy is that an employee may carry his accrued vacation leave
forward from one fiscal year to another with a maximum carry forward of 160 hours. Employees with at least
one month of service who terminate their employment are entitled to payment of all accumulated vacation
leave up to the maximum allowed. The College recognized the accrued liability for the unpaid vacation leave of
$372,246 and $336,059 at August 31 , 2018 and 2017 , respectively.

2. Sick Leave

Sick leave, which can be accumulated up to 480 hours, is typically earned at the rate of 8 hours per month. lt
is paid to an employee who misses work due to illness. The liability is not shown in the financial statements
since experience indicates the expenditure for sick leave to be minimal and accrued balances are not payable
to an employee who terminates employment.

F. Defeased Bonds Outstanding

The college's defeased bonds outstanding as of August 31 , 2o1B are as follows

Year
Refunded

Par Value
OutstandinqBond lssue

Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 2016 $6.91Op00

10. Emplovees' Retirement Plans

The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for almost all its employees; the Teacher Retirement System
of rexas and the optional Retirement Program. A description of each follows.

A. Teacher Retirement System of Texas - Defined Benefit plan

1. Plan Description

The College participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that has a special
funding situation. The plan is administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS). TRS's defined
benefit pension plan is established and administered in accordance with the Texas Constitution, Article XVl,
Section 67, and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. The pension trust fund is a qualified pension trust
under Section 401(a) of the lnternal Revenue Code. The Texas Legislature establishes benefits and
contribution rates within the guidelines of the Texas Constitution. The pension's Board of Trustees does not
have the authority to establish or amend benefit terms.
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All employees of public, state-supported educational institutions in Texas who are employed for one-half or
more of the standard work load and who are not exempted from membership under Texas Government Code,
Title 8, Section 822.002 are covered by the system.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the Teacher Retirement System's fiduciary net position is available ina separately-issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statementsand required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the internet at
http://www.trs.state.tx.us/abouudocuments/cafr.pdf#cAFR; by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River street, Austin,
Texas 78701-2698; or by catting (512) 542-6592.

3. Benefits Provided

TRS provides service and disability retirement, as well as death and survivor benefits, to eligible employees
(and their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas. The pension formula is calculated using Z.S
percent (multiplier) times the average of the five highest annual creditable salaries times years of credited
service to arrive at the annual standard annuity except for members who are grandfathered, the three highest
annual salaries are used. The normal service retirement is at age 65 with b years of credited service or when
the sum of the member's age and years of credited service equals 80 or more years. Early retirement is at age
55 with 5 years of service credit or earlier than 55 with 30 years of service credit. There are additional
provisions for early retirement if the sum of the member's age and years of service credit total at least g0, but
the member is less than age 60 or 62 depending on date of employment, or if the member was grandfathered
in under a previous rule. There are no automatic post-employment benefit changes; including automatic
COLAs. Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes, including ad hoc COLAs can ne granted by the Texas
Legislature as noted in the Plan description in (1) above.

Contributions

contribution requirements are established or amended pursuant to Article 16, section 67 of the Texas
Constitution which requires the Texas legislature to establish a member contribution rate of not less than 6% of
the member's annual compensation and a state contribution rate of not less than 6oh and not more than 10% of
the aggregate annual compensation paid to members of the system during the fiscal year. Texas Government
Code section 821.006 prohibits benefit improvements, if as a result of the particular action, the time required to
amortize TRS' unfunded actuarial liabilities would be increased to a period that exceeds 31 years, or, if the
amortization period already exceeds 31 years, the period would be increased by such action.

Employee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government code 825.402. senate Bill 145g of the
83rd Texas Legislature amended Texas Government Code 825.402 for member contributions and established
employee contribution rates for fiscal years 2014 lhru 2017. The 85th Texas Legislature, General
Appropriations Act (GAA) established the employer contribution rates for fiscal years 201g and 2019.

Contribution Rates

4.

Member
Non-Employer Contribution Entity (State)
Employers

201 7 Member Contributions
2017 State of Texas On-behalf Contributions
201 7 College Contributions

2018
7.7o/o

6.8o/o

6.8o/o

$640,227
$228,750
$345,309

2017
7.7o/o

6.8Yo

6.8%o
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The College's contributions to the TRS pension plan in 2018 were $378,589 as reported in the Schedule of
College Contributions in the Required Supplementary lnformation section of these financial statements.
Estimated State of Texas on-behalf contributions for 201 8 were $235,142.

As the non-employer contributing entity for public education and junior colleges, the State of Texas
contributes to the retirement system an amount equal to the current employer contribution rate times the
aggregate annual compensation of all participating members of the pension trust fund during that fiscal
year reduced by the amounts described below which are paid by the employers.

a

Public junior college or junior college districts are required to pay the employer contribution rate in the following
instances:

r On the portion of the member's salary that exceeds the statutory minimum for members entifled to the
statutory minimum under Section 21 .402 of the Texas Education Code.. During a new member's first 90 days of employment.

r When any part or all of an employee's salary is paid by federal funding sources, a privately sponsored
source, from non-educational and general, or local funds.

r When the employing district is a public junior college or junior college district, the employer shall
contribute to the retirement system an amount equal to 5O% of the state contribution rate for certain
instructional or administrative employees; and 100o/o of the state contribution rate for all other
employees.

ln addition to the employer contributions listed above, when employing a retiree of the Teacher Retirement
System the employer shall pay both the member contribution and the state contribution as an employment after
retirement surcharge.

5. ActuarialAssumptions

The total pension liability in the Augusl 31 , 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method
Single Discount Rate
Long-term expected lnvestment Rate of Return"
lnflation
Salary lncreases lncluding lnflation*
Payroll Grovyth Rate
Benefit changes during the year
Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes

August 31,2016
lndividual Entry Age Normal
Market Value
8.00%
8.00%
2.5o/o

3.5o/o to 9.5o/o

2.5%
None
None

*lncludes lnflation of 2.5o/o

Actuarial methods and assumptions were updated based on a study of actual experience for the four year
period ending August 31,2014, and adopted on September 24,2015, by the TRS Board of Trustees, who have
sole authority to determine the actuarial assumptions used for the plan. There were no changes to the
actuarial assumptions or other inputs that affected the measurement of the total pension liability since the prior
measurement period.

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the
measurement period.
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6. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.0%. There was no change in the discount
rate since the previous year. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members and those of the contributing employers and the non-employer contributing
entity are made at the statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan,s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long{erm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine'the total pension liability. The long-term rate of return on pension plan
investments is 8%' The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of geometric
real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Systems target asset allocation as of August 31,
2O17, are summarized below:

Asset Class

GlobalEquity
U.S.
Non-U.S. Developed
Emerging Markets
Directional Hedge Funds
Private Equity

Stable Value
U.S. Treasuries
Absolute Return
Stable Value Hedge Funds
Cash

Real Return
Global lnflation Linked Bonds
Real Assets
Energy and Natural Resources
Commodities

Risk Parity
Risk Parity
lnflation Expectation
Alpha

Total

Target
Allocation

18.0%
13.Oo/o

9.0%
4.0%

13.Oo/o

11.O%

0.0o/o

4.0%
1.O%

3.0%
16.0o/o

3.0%
0.0o/o

5.0%

0.0%

100i%

Long-Term
Expected

Geometric Real
Rate of Return

4.60/o

5.1%
5.9o/o

3.2o/o

7.0%

0.7o/o

1.8%
3.0%
-.02o/o

Expected
Contribution to

Long-Term
Portfolio Returns *

1.Oo/o

0.8o/o

0.7o/o

0.1o/o

1.1%

0.1o/o

0.o%
0.1o/o

O.Oo/o

0.0o/o

1.1%
o.204
0.Oo/o

0.3%
2.2%
1.0o/o

0.9o/o

5.10k
6.60/o

1.2o/o

6.7o/o

0.0o/o

8J0%
* The Expected Contribution to Returns incorporates the volatility drag resulting from the conversion between
arithmetic and geometric mean returns.

7. Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following schedule shows the impact of the Net Pension Liability if the discount rate used was 1% less
than and 1o/o grealet than the discount rate that was used (8%) in measuring the 2014 Net pension Liability.
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1% Decrease in

Discount Rate
(7

College's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability
State's proportionate share that is associated with the College

Differences between expected and actual economic experience

Changes in actuarial assumptions

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings

Changes in proportion and difference between the employer's
contributions and the proportionate share of contributions

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the measurement date

Total

Discount Rate
(8.0%)

1% lncrease in

Discount Rate
(9.0%)

College's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $5S902fl $3375*366 sl447gEl

8. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and lnflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At August 31, 2017, the College reported a liability of $3,375,366 for its proportionate share of the TRS's net
pension liability. This liability reflects a reduction for State pension support provided to the College. The
amount recognized by the College as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State
support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the College were as follows:

$3,375,366
2.236,388

Total $tgtlo4
The net pension liability was measured as of August 31 ,2017 and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer's proportion of
the net pension liability was based on the employer's contributions to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all employers to the plan for the period September 1 , 2016 thru August 31 ,2017.

At the measurement date of August 31 ,2017, the employer's proportion of the collective net pension liability
was .0105564%, which was a decrease of .000036 from its proportion measured as of August 31 ,2016.

For the year ended August 31,2017, the College recognized pension expense of 9170,583 and revenue of
$228,750 for support provided by the State.

AtAugust 31 ,2017, the College reported its proportionate share of the TRS's deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows

Deferred

$ 49,383

153,753

519,092

378,589

sL100-a!z

$ 182,029

88,020

765,081

315,695

$1350325

The net amounts of the employer's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Year ended August 31:

2018
2019
2020
2021

2022

Thereafter

Pension Expense Amount
($186,421)

29,O37

( 202,572)
( 248,559)
( 14,e61)
( 4,721)

11

B. Optional Retirement Program - Defined Contribution plan

1. Plan Description

The State has also established an optional retirement program for institutions of higher education. participation
in the Optional Retirement Program, a defined contribution plan, is in lieu of participation in the Teacher
Retirement System. The optional retirement program provides for the purchase of annuity contracts and
operates under the provisions of the Texas Constitution, Article XVl, Sec. 67, and Texas Government Code,
Title 8, Subtitle C.

2. Funding Policy

Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and amended by the Texas state
legislature. The percentages of participant salaries currently contributed by the state and each participant are
6.6% and 6.6%, respectively. Additionally, the College contributes 131% of the covered payroll. Benefits fully
vest after one year plus one day of employment. Because these are individual annuity contracts, the state has
no additionalor unfunded liability forthis program. S.B. 1812, effective September 1,2O1g,limits the amount of
the state's contribution to 50% of the state contribution rates noted above.

Total payroll of employees covered by the Program was $2,006,664 and $2,260,441 for the years ended
August 31 , 2018 and 2017 , respectively. The College's employees' contributions to the program for the years
ending August 31,2018 and2017 were $133,444 and $150,327, respectively, and were equalto the required
contributions for the year. Other contributions made from the College for the years ending August 31, 2018 and
2017 were $26,400 and $28,518, respectively, and were equal to the required contributions for the year.
During the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, the amounts contributed by the State on behalf of the
College were 969,710 and $71,097, respectively.

C. TotalPayroll

The total payroll for all College employees was $1 1,972,238 and gl 1,741,O93 for the years ended August 31, 201g
and 201 7, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

College employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment purposes pursuant to
authority granted in Government Code 609.001.

Health Care and Life lnsurance Benefits

Certain health care and life insurance benefits for active employees are provided through an insurance company whose
premiums are based on benefits paid during the previous year. The State recognizes the cost of providing these benefits
by expending the annual insurance premiums.

The state's and the College's contribution per full{ime employee was 9622 per month for employee only coverage and
ranged from $860 lo$1 ,217 for employee and dependent coverage forthe year ended August 31 ,2018. The state's
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and the College's contribution per full-time employee was $617 per month for employee only coverage and ranging from
$854 to $1,208 for employee and dependent coverage for the year ended August 31 ,2017. The total number of
employees participating in the plan and contributions were as follows:

2 7-18 2016-17

Active employees 226
Retired employees 77

Totals -_303 $1211235 gL5!Sp56 9L084334 $1*59tu129

Number of
Employees

State
Contribution

$ 835,223
376.012

College
Contribution

$1,214,625
303.431

Number of
Employees

228
69

297

State
Contribution

$ 816,482
268.352

College
Contribution

$1,287,976
305.453

13. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OpEB)

A. Plan Description

B

The College participates in a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plan with a
special funding situation. The Texas Employees Group Benefits Program (GBP) is administered by the Employees
Retirement System of Texas (ERS). The GBP provides certain post-employment health care, life and dental
insurance benefits to retired employees of participating universities, community colleges, and State agencies in
accordance with Chapter 1551, Texas lnsurance Code. Almost all employees may become eligible for those
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the State and retire with at least 10 years of service to
eligible entities. Surviving spouses and dependents of these retirees are also covered. Benefit and contribution
provisions of the GBP are authorized by State law and may be amended by the Texas Legislature.

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the GBP fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued ERS Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) that includes financial statements, notes to the financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the lnternet at https://ers.texas.gov/About-
ERS/Reports-and-Studies/Reports-on-Overall-ERS-Operations-and-Financial-Management; or by writing to ERS at:
200 East 18th Street, Austin, TX 78701; or by calting (877) 275-4377 .

C. Benefits Provided

Retiree health benefits offered through the GBP are available to most State of Texas retirees and their eligible
dependents. Participants need at least ten years of service credit with an agency or institution that participates in
the GBP to be eligible for GBP retiree insurance. The GBP provides self-funded group health (medical and
prescription drug) benefits for eligible retirees under HealthSelect. The GBP also provides a fully insured medical
benefit option for Medicare-primary participants under the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and life insurance
benefits to eligible retirees via a minimum premium funding arrangement. The authority under which the obligations
of the plan members and employers are established and/or may be amended is Chapter 1551, Texas lnsurance
Code.

D. Contributions

Section 1551.055 of Chapter 1551 , Texas lnsurance Code, provides that contribution requirements of the plan
members and the participating employers are established and may be amended by the ERS Board of Trustees. The
employer and member contribution rates are determined annually by the ERS Board of Trustees based on the
recommendations of ERS staff and its consulting actuary. The contribution rates are determined based on (1) the
benefit and administrative costs expected to be incurred, (ii) the funds appropriated and (iii) the funding policy
established by the Texas Legislature in connection with benefits provided through the GBP. The Trustees revise
benefits when necessary to match expected benefit and administrative costs with the revenue expected to be
generated by the appropriated funds.
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The following table summarizes the maximum monthly employer contribution toward eligible retirees' health and
basic life premium. Retirees pay any premium over and above the employer contribution. The employer does not
contribute toward dental or optional life insurance. Surviving spouses and their dependents do not receive any
employer contribution. As the non-employer contributing entity (NECE), the State of Texas pays part of the
premiums for the junior and community colleges.

Maximum Monthly Employer Contribution
Retiree Health and Basic Life Premium

Fiscal Year 2017
Retiree only $ 617.30
Retiree & Spouse 970.98
Retiree & Children 854.10
Retiree & Family 1,207.78

Contributions of premiums to the GBP plan for the current and prior fiscal year by source is summarized in the
following table:

E. ActuarialAssumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of August 31 ,2017 using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless othenrrrise specified:

Actuarial Assumptions
ERS Group Benefits Program Plan

Premium Contributions by Source
Group Benefits Program Plan

Forthe Years Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017
2018

Employers $303,431
Members (Employees) 0
Non-employer Contributing Entity (State of Texas) 323,542

2017
$305,452

0
318,068

August 31,2017
Entry age
Level percent of pay, open
30 years
N/A
3.51%
2.5oo/o to 9.50Vo

8.50% for FY 2019, decreasing 0.5% per year to
4.50o/o lor FY 2027 and later years

2.50%
None

Tables based on TRS experience with full
generational projection using Scale BB from Base
Year 2014
Tables based on TRS experience with full
generational projection using Scale BB from Base Year
2014 using a 3-year set forward and minimum mortality
rates of four per 100 male members and two per 100
female members
Sex Distinct RP-2014 Employee Mortality multiplied
by 90% with full generational projection using Scale BB

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Discount rate
Projected annual salary increase (includes inflation)
Annual healthcare trend rate

lnfl ation assumption rate
Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes
Mortality assumptions:

Service retirees, survivors and other
inactive members

Disability retirees

Active members
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Many of the actuarial assumptions used in this valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies
performed by the ERS and TRS retirement plan actuaries for the period September 1 , 2010 to August 31 , 2014 for
higher education members.

F. lnvestment Policy

The State Retiree Health Plan is a pay-as-you-go plan and does not accumulate funds in advance of retirement.
The system's Board of Trustees adopted the amendment to the investment policy in August 2017 lo require that all
funds in the plan be invested in short-term fixed income securities and speciff tirat the expected rate of return on
these investments is 2.4%.

G. Discount Rate

Because the GBP does not accumulate funds in advance of retirement, the discount rate that was used to measure
the total OPEB liability is the municipal bonds rate. The discount rate used to determine the total OpEB liability as
of the beginning of the measurement year was 2.84%. The discount rate used to measure the total OpEB liability
as of the end of the measurement year was 3.51%, which amounted to an increase of .67%. The source of the
municipal bond rate was the Bond Buyer lndex of general obligation bonds with 20 years to maturity and mixed
credit quality' The bonds average credit quality is roughly equivalent to Moody's lnvestors Service,s AJ2 rating and
Standard & Poor's Corp's AA rating. Projected cash flows into the plan are equal to projected benefit paymenis out
of the plan. Because the plan operates on a pay-as-you-go (PAYGO) basis and is not intended to accumulate
assets, there is no long-term expected rate of return on plan assets and therefore the years of projected benefit
payments to which the long-term expected rate of return is applicable is zero years.

H. Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following schedule shows the impact of the College's proportionate share of the collective net OpEB liability if
the discount rate used was 1% less than and 1o/o greater than the discount rate that was used (3.s1%) in measuring
the net OPEB liabitity.

College's proportionate share
of the net OPEB liability

College's proportionate share of the
current healthcare cost trend rate

Discount Rate
(3 o/o\

1o/o\

$14JO8J90 $aL9S6S46 $10J882s1

1% Decrease in
Discount Rate

(2.51Yo)

1% Decrease in
Discount Rate

(7.50%\
Discount Rate

(8.50%)

1% lncrease in
Discount Rate

1% lncrease in
Discount Rate

(9.50%)

l. Healthcare Trend Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The initial healthcare trend rate is 8.5% and the ultimate rate is 4.5%. The following schedule shows the impact of
the College's proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability if the healthcaie cost trend rate used was 1%
less than and 1Vo greater than the healthcare cost trend rate that was used (B.s%) in measuring the net OpEB
liability.

$10J76p80 L1l_986J46
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J. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows and lnflows of Resources Related to OpEB

At August 31, 2017, the College reported a liability of $11,986,846 for its proportionate share of the ERS's net
OPEB liability. This liability reflects a reduction for State support provided to the College for OPEB. The amount
recognized by the College as its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the
total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with the College were as follows:

College's proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability
State's proportionate share that is associated with the College

Total

$11,986,846
11.563.249

$23,550!95

The net OPEB liability was measured as of August 31,2017 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer's proportion of the net OpEB
liability was based on the employer's contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all employers to
the plan for the period September 1,2016 through August 31,2017.

At the measurement date of August 31 ,2017, the employer's proportion of the collective net OPEB liability was
.035179%, which was the same proportion measured as of August 31 ,2016.

For the year ended August 31,2018, the College recognized OPEB expense of 9618,820 and revenue of 9318,068
for support provided by the State.

K. Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation

Changes to the actuarial assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total OPEB liability since the
prior measurement period were as follows:

Additional demographic assumptions (aggregate payroll increases and rate of general inflation) to reflect an
experience study;
The percentage of current and future retirees and retirees' spouses not yet eligible to participate in the
HealthSelect Medicare Advantage plan who will elect to participate at the earliest date at which coverage
can commence has been updated to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends;
Assumptions for administrative expenses, assumed per Capita Health Benefit Costs, Health Benefit Cost
and Retiree Contribution trends to reflect recent health plan experience;
Effects in short-term expectations and revised assumed rate of general inflation.

Changes of Benefit Terms Since Prior Measurement Date

The following benefit revisions have been adopted since the prior valuation

r An increase in the out-of-pocket cost applicable to services obtained at a free-standing emergency facility;
r An elimination of the copayment for virtual visits,
. A copay reduction for Airrosti and for out-of-state participants;
r Elimination of the deductible for in-network services and application of a copayment rather than coinsurance

to certain services like primary care and specialist visits.

These minor benefit changes have been reflected in the fiscal year 2018 Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs.

At August 31 , 2018, the College reported its proportionate share of the ERS plan's collective deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

a

a

a

a
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Differences between expected and actual economic experience

Changes in actuarial assumptions

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings

Changes in proportion and difference between the employer's
contributions and the proportionate share of contributions

Contributions paid to ERS subsequent to the measurement date

$

Deferred
Outflows

Deferred

$ 144,043

2,506,305

3,549

325.000

Total $29"541t $Z6O0Jta

The net amounts of the employer's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended Auqust 31:

2018
2019
2020
2021

2022

Thereafter

Pension Expense Amount
($5e6,038)

( 5e6,038)
( 596,038)
( 5e6,038)
( 262,647)

'14. Contracts and Grant Awards

Contracts and grant awards are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of the AICPA lndustry Audit Guide,
Audits of Colleges and Universities. Revenues are recognized on Exhibit 2 and Schedule A. For grant awards, funds
expended, but not collected, are reported as accounts receivable on Exhibit 1. See Note 7 for disaggregation of
amounts included in accounts receivable. Grant awards received but not expended are included in deferred revenues on
Exhibit 1. Contract and grant awards that are not yet funded and for which the institution has not yet performed services
are not included in the financial statements.

15. Risk Manaqement

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2018, the College purchased commercial
insurance to cover general liabilities. There were no significant reductions in coverage in the past fiscal year and there
were no settlements exceeding insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years.

16. Commitments and Continqencies

A. Facilities Lease

The College rents facilities from Wichita County for its Skills Training Center. The lease agreement with Wichita
County is for a term of ten years and calls for a monthly rental payment of $8,667 from January 1, 2017 through
December 31,2021 then reducing to $5,542 per month for January 1,2022 through December 31,2026.
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Future minimum lease payments under this lease are as follows

Year Endinq Auqust 31,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2027
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$104,000
104,000
104,000
79,000
66,500

221.667

Total minimum lease payments $67q!€Z

The College paid $87,333 and $87,333 in rent under this lease agreement and the previous lease agreement
during each of the years ended August 31 , 2018 and 20i7 , respectively.

B. Long-Term Service Contract

The College contracts with an outside information technology firm for maintenance of its hardware, software and
network. The College's contract with the company is currently a one-year extension of the original contract which
was for a term of three years through August 31 ,2017, with a minimum base fee of g310,000 per year paid in
monthly installments ol $32,124 and additional annual license fees of 936 per computer paid October 1st of each
year. Future minimum payments under this agreement with the current inventory of computers are as follows:

Year Endinq Auoust 31.
2019 $329352

The College paid $379,792 and $378,792 in service fees under this agreement during the years ended August 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

C. Grants

The College participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent that the College has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectability of any related receivable may be
impaired. ln the opinion of the College, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the
rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies.

17. Concentration - Title lV HEA Funding

For the years ended August 31 , 2018 and 2017, the College received approximately 21 .5o/o and 21 ]%, respectively, of
its total revenues (operating and non-operating) from federal Title lV HEA grants. ln addition, $5,907,213 and
$5,979,455, of Title lV student loans were used by students to pay for tuition, fees and other costs included in the
College's revenues forthe years ending August 31 ,2018 and2017, respectively. Altogether, these grants and loans
directly contribute to more than 50% of the College's total annual revenue. A loss or significant reduction in these grants
and loans would have a material adverse effect on the College's operations and financial position.
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18. Tax Abatement

On June 17,2015, the District's Board of Trustees approved a tax abatement agreement with Electra Wind, LLCpursuant to Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code, as amended, i.e., the Texas Economic Development Act.

According to the Agreement, the company was to invest between $250,000,000 and $3s0,000,000 in renewabre erectricenergy production (a wind farm). The District agreed to abate 1OO% of applicable taxes for a ten (10) year period
beginning January 1 of the year after commencement of commercial operations. ln exchange, the company agreed tomake Payments ln Lieu of Taxes (PlLor) equalto one thousand dollars ($1,000) per megawatt of rurbine Nameplate
Capacity for the first four (4) years and one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,soo; per megawatt ot ruroine rrl"r"irrt"
Capacity for years five (5) through ten (10). For fiscal year 2018, which was the first y""1. 6t the agreement, the pILOT
payment was $230,000.

19. Prior Period Adiustment

For fiscal year ended August 31 , 2018, the college implemented GASB statement No. 75. As a result, a prior period
adjustment to the beginning net position for governmental activities for oPEB is required. The adjustment is as follows:

Net position as previously stated on August 31 ,2017
August 31,2017 deferred outflows - 2017 contributions
August 31,2016 net OPEB liability (measurement date)

Net position as restated on August 31 ,20'lT $_245J14)

$13,747,043
329,575

( 14.321.732)
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Vernon College

Schedule of College's Share of Pension Liability
Teacher Retirement System of Texas
For the Year Ended August 31,2018

Fiscal vear endind Auoust 3'1*.

TRS net position as a percentage oftotal pension liability

College's proportionate share of collec:tive net pension liability (%)

College's proportionate share of collective net pension liability ($)
Portion of NECE's total proportionate share of NPL associated wilh College

Total

College's covered payroll amounl

Ratio of: ER proportionate share of collective NPL/ER's covered payroll amount

2,236,388 2,800,729 2,675,276 2,292,336

_9___q,6uq_ _$__qf99n99_ _$___ql29,611_ _$_!J!Z!?!_

_$_-9J99192_ _$___Zp9Zp99_ _9J_JJ9L3_

81o/o 81o/o 720/o

201 8*

83.25%

0.0105564%

$ 3,37s,366 $ 4,002,670

2016* 2015*

78.43o/o 83.25o/o

0.01075380/o 0.0'1222210/0

$ 3,801,335 $ 3,264,692

20't7*

78.OQo/o

0.0105923%

_9___9.91!,619_

67o/o

' The amounts presented above are as of the measurement date of the collective nei pension liability

*" Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.

NECE - Non-Employer Contribuling Enlity
NPL - Net Pension Liability
ER - Employer / lnstitution / Reporting Entily
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Schedule of Gollege's Pension Gontributions
Teacher Retirement System of Texas
For the Year Ended August 31,2018

Fiscal vear endino Auou 31*, 201 8*" 2017** 201 6** 2015**

Legally required contributions

Actual Contributions

Contributions deficiency (excess)

College's covered payroll amount

Ratio of: Actual contributions / ER covered amount

$ 8,732,607 $ 8,314,648 $

$ 345,309

(345,309)

$ 344,940

(344,s40)

$ 329,434

(329,434)

$ 314,702

(314,7O2)

$ $ $ $

$ 7,9s7,060

3.95o/o 4.1SVo 3.940 3.96%

* The amounts presented above are as of the College's most recent fiscal year-end

** Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.
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Vernon College

Schedule of College's Share of Net OPEB Liability
Employee Retirement System of Texas

Forthe Year Ended August 31,2018

Fiscal vear endino Auoust 31*

ERS net position as a percentage of total net OPEB liability

College's proportionate share of collective net OPEB liability (%)

College's proportionate share of collective net OPEB liability (g)
State's proportionate share of Net OPEB liability associated with College

Total

College's covered payroll amount

Ratio of: ER proportionate share of collective OPEB/ER's covered payroll amount

* The amounts presented above are as of the measurement date of the collective net pension liability

** Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.

NECE -- Non-Employer Contributing Eniity
OPEB -- Net Other Post Employment Benefit Liabiliiy
ER - Employer / lnstitution / Reporting Entity

201 8*

2.04o/o

0.035179970

$ I 1,986,846
11,563,249

$ 23,550,095

$ 8,314,648

283o/o
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Schedule of College's OPEB Contributions
Employee Retirement System of Texas

For the Year Ended August 31,2018

Fiscal year ending Auqust 31.,

Legally required contributions

Actual Contributions

Contributions deficiency (excess)

College's covered payroll amount

Contributions and percentage of covered payroll

* The amounts presented above are as of the College's most recent fiscal year-end.

"* Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they
become available.

2018**

$ 325,000

(325,000)

T--

$ 8,732,607

3.72o/o
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A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

1. Changeof BenefitTerms
There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the
measurement period.

2. Changes of Assumptions
There were no changes of assumptions that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the
measurement period.

B. OPEB PIan

1. Change of Benefit Terms
The following benefit revisions have been adopted since the prior valuation: (a) an increase in the out-of
pocket cost applicable to services obtained at a freestanding emergency facility, (b) an elimination of the
copayment for virtual visits, (c) a copay reduction for Airrosti and for out-of-state participants (d) elimination
of the deductible for in-network services and application of a copayment rather than coinsurance to certain
services like primary care and specialist visits. These minor benefit changes have been reflected in the fiscal
year 2018 Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs.

2. Changes of Assumptions
Additional demographic assumptions (aggregate payroll increases and rate of general inflation) to reflect an
experience study; The percentage of current and future retirees and retirees spouses not yet eligible to
participate in the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage plan who will elect to participate at the earliest date at
which coverage can commence has been updated to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends;
Assumptions for administrative expenses, assumed per Capita Health Benefit Costs, Health Benefit Cost
and Retiree Contribution trends to reflect recent health plan experience; Effects in short-term expectations
and revised assumed rate of general inflation.
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Vernon College
Schedule A

Schedule of Operating Revenues
For the Year Ended August 31,2018

(With Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended August 31,20171

lJnrestricted Reslricted

Total
Educational
Activities

Auxiliary
Enterprises

2018
Totals

2017
Totals

Tuition:
State funded credit courses:

ln-district resident tuition
Out-of-district resident tuition
Non-resident tuition
TPEG - credit (set aside)*

State funded continuing education
TPEG - non-credit (set aside).

Non-state funded continuing education
Total Tuition

Fees:
General fees
Laboratory fees

Total Fees

Scholarship allowances and discounts
Remissions and exemptions - state
Title lV federal grants
TPEG awards
Other local awards

Total Scholarship Allowances

Total Net Tuition and Fees

Other operating revenues:
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Non-governmental grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
lnvestment income (program restricted)
General operating revenues

Total Other Operating Revenues

Auxiliary Enterprises:
Residential life
Scholarship allowances and discounts

Net Residential Life
Bookstore
Scholarship allowances and discounts

Net Bookstore
Student programs

Total Net Auxiliary Enterprises

$ 283,79s
4,506,876

98.135

839,482

156,332

248,005

19,144

$ 283,795
4,506,876

98,1 35
248,005
839,482

19,144
156,332

$ 28s,795
4,506,876

98,135
248,005
839,482

19,144
156,332

$ 264,958
4,676,641

124,264
249,701
866,289

29,695
144,895

$ $

5,884,620 267,149 6,1 51 ,769 6,151 ,769 6,356,443

4,810,282
747,872

5,558,154

4,810,282
747,872

4,810,282 4,495,761
684,692747 872

5,558,1 54 5,558,154 5,180,453

(416,720)
(3,866,416)

(s5,760)
(2,148,021)
(6,431,157) (95.760)

5,01 1 ,617 17'1 ,389

(416,720)
(3,866,416)

(95,760)
(2,148,O21)
(6,526,917)

5,183,006

(416,720)
(3,866,416)

(95,760)
(2,148,021)
(6,526,s17)

(827,769)
(3,623,460)

(79,565)
(2,086,1 81 )
(6,616,975)

854,921
425,429
887,698
't11,462

1 3,913
10,848

2,304,271

5,183,006 4,919,921

17,483
44.749

926,286
830,1 67

1.154.1'.t1

17,485
'113,201

210.320

943,769
874,916

1,154,11'l
113,201
17,485

943,769
874,916

1,154,111
113,201
17,485

210,320210 320
385,753 2,928,049 3,313,802 3,313,802

290,808
1,325,779
(623,513)

290,808

513,488
(222,680)

513,488
(222,680)

482,658
(195,278)
287,380

1,559,782
$19.242\

1,325,779
(623,s13)

266 702,266
37 710

1,030,784 1,030,784

Total Operating Revenues (Exhibit 2) $ 5,397,370 $ 3,099,438 $ 8,496,808 $1 ,784 _$_9f?zE9?_ _S__9119,019_
(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit 2)

702 940,540
87,907

1,315,827
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Vernon Gollege
Schedule B

Schedule of Operating Expenses by Object
For the Year Ended August 31,2018

(With Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended August 31,20171

Operating Expenses

Salaries

and Wages

Benefits Other

Expenses

201 I
Totals

2017

TotalsState Local

Unrestricted - Educational Activities

lnstruction

Public Service

Academic Support
Student Services

lnstitutional Support

Operation and Maintenance of Plant

Scholarships and Fellowships

Total Unrestricted Educational Activities

Restricted - Educational Activities

lnstruction

Public Service

Academic Support

Student Services

lnstitutional Support

Operation and Maintenance of Plant

Scholarships and Fellowships

Total Restricted Educational Activities

Total Educational Activities

Auxiliary Enterprises

Depreciation Expense - Buildings and

other real estate improvements

Depreciation Expense - Equipment

and furnilure

Total Operating Expenses

$ 5,737,989

153,586

1,381 ,537

1,339,749

1,434,680

848,939

$ 1,143,789

60,610

277,722

279,358

314,303

168,527

$ 445,296

21,510

723,116
'175,549

1,561,884

't,202,656

$ 7,327,074

235,706

2,382,375

1,794,656

3,310,867

2,220,122

$ 7,146,884

246,532

2,433,650

1,770,005

3,229,713

2,149,925

$

10,896,480 2,244,309 4,130,01 1 17 ,270,800 16,976,709

23,749
't51,734

17,463

67,493
'148,593

982,443

52,061

238,546

239,951

269,966

39,949

769,560

203,421

1,775,752

447,165

256,009

307,444

431,427

1,333,538

343,057

227,174

276,233

347,860

409,032 1,782,966 39,949

12,868

743,0'16 743,016 168,017

728 865 3,960,813 2,695,879

5,858,876 21 ,231 ,613 't 9,672,588

'1,044,741 1,945,823 2,245,168

11,305,512 1,782,966

678,097

$ 11,983,609 $ 1,782,966

2,284,258

222,985

540,403

339,565

540,403

339,565

534,552

335,939

$ r,50?,r43 $ 7,783,585 $ 24,057,404 $ 22,788,247

(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit 2)
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Vernon College
Schedule C

Schedule of Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses
For the Year Ended August 31,2018

(With Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended August 31,20171

Auxiliary

Enterprises

$

2018
Totals

20't7
Totals

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

State approriations:
Educational and general state support
State group insurance
State retirement match

Total state appropriations

Property taxes for maintenance & operation
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Capital contracts, grants and gifts

Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets
Lease income
lnvestment income

Total non-operating revenues

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES:

Operational costs of lease property

Amortization of bond issuance costs
lnterest and fees on capital related debt

Total non-operating expenses

Net non-operating revenues

Unrestricted Restricted

$ 5,612,932 $

1,501 ,773
229,989

$ 5,612,932

1,501 ,773
229,989

$ 5,616,289
1,091 ,892

360,375

5,612,932 1 731 762

1,797,593
5,448,482

185,410
(50,582)

52,710

7.344,694 7,068,556

28,977
10,308

913,077

45,327

2,710,670
5,448,482

230,737
(50,582)

28,977

63,018

2,735,221

5,167,989

217,359
(4,381)

24,788
29,946

7,463,235 7,404,939 958,404 15.775,996 15,239,478

2,949
47,692

13,172 310 808

13,172 269,975 283 '147 361,449

$ 7,450,063 $ 7,134,964 _$__9gg39t_ _q_1_!,4%919_ _S3pZ9g9_
(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit 2)

2,961
47,692

219,322

2,961

47,692
232,494
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Vernon Gollege
Schedule D

Schedule of Net Position By Source and Availability
Forthe Year Ended August 31,2018

(With Memorandum Totals for the Year Ended August 31,2017)

Detail Source
CapitalAssets

Net of Depreciation
t lnrcslricled

Available for
Current Operalions

Reslricted
Fvnendahla Ndn-trYdcndehle & Related Debt Total Yes No

Cunenl:
Unrestricted
Auxiliary
Student Aid

$(14,068,265) $ $ $ $(14,068,265)

88,755

$(14,068,265) $

88,755

Endowment:
Unrestricted:

Student Aid

Plant:
Debt Service
lnvestment in Plant

88,755

1,381,586

527,783
12,788,064

(14,068,265) 616,538 1,38't,586 12,788,064 717,923 (r 3,979,510) 14,697 ,433
(Erhibit l)

13,747,043 (222,7't9l 13,969,762

1,381,586

527,7A3
12,7Aa,064

1,381,586

527,783
12,788,064

Total Net Position, August 31, 2018

Total Net Position, August 31, 2017, as
originally stated

Prior Period Adjuslment

Total Net Position, August 31, 2017, as
reslated

Net lncrease (Decrease) in Net Position

(297,922)

(13,992,157)

602,986 '1,390,398 12,051,581

(14,290,079) 602,986 1,390,398

_9____221,8t!_ _$___1qJgL _$______19f1?t

(13,992,157) (13,992,157)

,581 (245,'t14\ (14,214,876\ 13,969,762
(Exhibil 2)

_$_______z!tu9!_ _s____999!92_ _S___?99p99_ _g__lns7J_
(Exhibit 2)
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Vernon College
Schedule E

Schedule of Expenditures of FederalAwards
For the Year Ended August 31,2018

Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor/Proqram Title

U.S. Department of Education:

Direct Proorams:
Student Financial Aid Cluster:

Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (FSEOG)
Federal Workstudy Program (FWS)
Federal Pell Grant Program (PELL)
Federal Direct Student Loans (Direct Loans)

Title lll - Strengthening lnstitutional Programs

Total Direct Programs

Pass-Throuqh From:
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board:

Carl Perkins Vocational Education Annual Grant

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Department of Aqriculture
2016 Farmers Market Promotion Program

Total Department of Agriculture

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Pass-Throuoh From:
Nortex Regional Planning Commission:

Special Programs for the Aging - Title Vll

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal
CFDA

Number

Pass-Through
Grantors
Number

Pass-Through
Disbursements

and
Expenditures

Pass-Through
to Subrecipients

$$84.007
84.033
84.063
84.268

84.031A

84.048

10.168

93.041

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

90,828
67,493

5,290,161
5.907 ,213

11,355,695

454,653

1'1,810,348

94252

N/A

263,593

12.073.941

162,369

162 369

N/A 45,671

45,671

s12 281,981 $

The accompanying Nofes are an integral paft of this statement.
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Vernon Gollege
Schedule E

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Cont'd)
For the Year Ended August 31,2018

Note 1: Sionificant Accountinq Policies Used in Preparinq the Schedule
The expenditures included in this schedule are reported on the College's fiscal year. Expenditure reports to funding
agencies are prepared on the award period basis. The expenditures reported above represent funds which have been
expended by the College for the purposes of the award. The expenditures reported above may not have been reimbursed
by the funding agencies as of the end of the fiscal year. Some amounts reported in the schedule may differ from amounts
used in the preparation of the financial statements. Separate accounts are maintained for the different awards to aid in
the observance of limitations and restrictions imposed by the funding agencies. The College has followed all applicable
guidelines issued by various entities in the preparation of the schedule.

Note 2: Federal Assistance Reconciliation

Federal Revenues - per Exhibit 2
Federal Grants and Contracts - per Schedule A
Federal Grants and Contracts - per Schedule C
Direct Loans
Administrative Cost Recoveries - U.S. Department of Education
Admin. Allow. - 2016 Farmers Market Promotion Program
Veterans Reporting Allowance

Total Per Schedule E

Note 3: lndirect Cost Rate

The College did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.

$ 943,769
5,448,482
5,907,213

(7,750)
(8,333)
(1,400)

$ 12,281 ,981
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Vernon College
Schedule F

Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
For Year Ended August 31, 20,l8

State Grantor/Pass Th roug h Grantor/Program Title
Grant

Contract #
Expenditures

Auqust 31,2018

Pass-Through From
Texas Higher Ed Coordinating Board

College Workstudy
Texas Education Opportunity Grant
Nursing lnnovations Grant
Professional Nursing (Over 70) Grant

Subtotal Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

Texas Department of Agriculture
Texans Feeding Texans

Subtotal Texas Department of Agriculture

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
Law Enforcement Grant

Subtotal Texas Gomptroller of Public Accounts

Texas Workforce Commission
Skllls Development Fund

N/A
NA
NA
NA

N/A

N/A

$ 17,463
235,141
165,956

9,11s

427,675

6,315

6,315

2 973

2 973

031 75DF000 437 953

Subtotal Texas Workforce Awards 437 953

Total State Grants and Awards $ 874,916

Note 2: SionificantAccounting Policies Used in Preoarino the Schedule
The accompanying schedule is presented using the accrual basis. See Notes to the financial statements for the
College's significant accounting policies. These expenditures are reported on the College's fiscal year. Expenditure
reports to funding agencies are prepared on the award period basis.
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Vernon College
Statistical Supplement I

Net Position by Gomponent
Fiscal Years 2O13 to 2018

(Unaudited)

For the Years Ended Auqust 31.

2018 2017 2014 20132016 2015

Net lnvestment in capital assets

Restricted - nonexpendable

Restricted - expendable

Unrestricted

Prior Period Adjustment - GASB 68

Prior Period Adjustment - GASB 75

Total primary government net position

$ 12,788,064

1,381 ,586

616,538

(14,068,265)

$ 12,051,581

1,390,398

602,986

(297,922)

$ 1 1,653,226

1,526,525

975,289

(1,037,798)

$ 10,962,975

1,542,110

979,687

(371,319)

$ 11,147,587

1,688,875

984,297

3,358,774

(3,695,550)

$ 10,562,477

1,892,062

1,134,148

3,666,758

(1 3,992, I 57)

$ 717,923 $ (245,114) $ 13,117,242 $ 13,1'13,453 $ 13,483,983 $ 17,255.445

Note: Due to reporting format and definition changes prescribed by GASB 34/35, only fiscal years 2013 to 20'18 are reported.
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Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 2

Revenue by Source
Fiscal Years 2013 to 2018

(Unaudited)

For the Years Ended August 31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Operating Revenues
Tuition and fees (net of discounts)
Government grants and contracts:

Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts

Non-governmental grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
lnvestment income (program restricted)
Auxiliary enterprises (net of discounts)
Other operating revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Non-Operating Revenues
State appropriations
Ad valorem taxes
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Other non-operating income
Lease income
lnvestment income
Total Non-Operating Revenues

Total Revenues

Operating Revenues
Tuition and fees (net of discounts)
Government grants and contracts:

Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts

Non-governmental grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
lnvestment income (program restricted)
Auxiliary enterprises (net of discounts)
Other operating revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Non-Operating Revenues
State appropriations
Ad valorem taxes
Federal Title lV grant revenue
Capital contracts, grants and gifts
Lease income
lnvestment income
Total Non-Operating Revenues

Total Revenues

$ 5,183,006

943,769
874.9 16

s,527,592

854,921
425,429
887,698
111,462

13,91 3
't,3't5,827

10,848
8,540,019

1,154,111
113,201
17,485

1,O30,784
2't0,320

761,962
327,546

1,005,074
122,003

5,587
1,247,495

234,829
900,845
899,800
112,937

7,099
1,261,227

19,949

239,482
1 ,166,010
1,084,070

't08,782

16,502
1,309,841

$ 4,919,921 $ 4,589,733 $ 4,864,086 $ 4,880,953 $ 4,662,544

266,912
732,620
945,811
114,134

7,711
1,194,766

63 316
8,059,400 8,126,040 8,317,639 8,650,547

7,344,694
2,710,670
5,448,482

230,737
28,977
63,018

7,068,556
2,735,22'.1
5,167,989

217,359
24,788
29,946

6,935,691
2,718,006
5,120,750

203,655
24,929
11,506

6,791 ,015
2,648,716
5,580,294

235,821
18,516
24,109

6,709,002
2,661,134
5,899,152

188,802
14,158

6,731 ,780
2,229,786
5,872,046

242,662
17,161
42,37919 721

15,826,578 15,243,859 15,014,537 't5,298,471 t5,491 ,969 15,135,814

$ 25,354,170 $ 23,783,878 s 23. _$ nl2!,51L _g?9,q99,69!_ $ 23,786,361

For the Years Ended August 31,

2018 2017 2016 2015 20'14 2013

20.44o/o 20.690/o 19.89% 20.760/o 20,50o/o 19.60%

3.72o/o

3.45%
4.55o/o

0.45%
0.07%
4.07o/o

0.83%

3.59%
1.79o/o

3.73%
o.470/o

0.06%
5.53o/o

0.05%

3.30%
1.42%
4.360/o

0.53%
0.02o/o

5.41o/o

0.00%

1 .14o/o

3j3%
4.04o/o

0.49o/o

0.03%
5.1Oo/o

0.000/o

0.99%
3.78%
3.78o/o

O.47o/o

0.03%
5.30%
0.08%

1 .01o/o

4.9Oo/"

4.560/o

0.460/o

0.O7o/o

5.5',1o/o

0.27o/o

37.58o/o 35.91%

29.72o/o

11.50o/o

21.73o/o

0.91%
O.10o/o

0.13o/o

34.93o/o 34.690/o 34.93o/" 36.37o/o

28.97%
10.690/o

21.49o/o
0.91o/o

0.1'l%
O.25o/o

30.06%
11.78o/o

22.19o/o
0.88%
0.'110/o

O.O5o/o

28.99o/o

11.31o/o

23.82o/o

1.01o/o

0.08%
0.10%

28.18o/o

11 .18o/o

24.78o/o

0.79o/o

0.06%
0.08%

28.30o/o

9.37o/o

24.690/o

1.02o/o

0.07%
o.180/

62.42o/o

100.00%

64.09o/o 65.O7o/o 65.31o/o 65.07o/o 63.63%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Note: Due to reporting format and definition changes prescribed by GASB 34/35, only fiscal years 2013 lo 2018 are reported

54



Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 3

Program Expenses by Function
FiscalYears 2013 to 2018

(Unaudited)

For the Years Ended August 31

$ 9,102,826
682,872

2,638,383
2,102,100
3,742,294
2,220,122

743,016
1,945,823

879,968

$ 8.480.422
589,589

2,660,825
2,046,237
3,577,573
2,'t49,925

168,017
2,245,168

870,491

$ 8,456,979
520,316

2,687,735
2,023,111
3,591,913
2,130,759

320,362
2,111,369

864,837

$ 8,319,528
524,080

2,688,02'l
1,941,001
3,254,711
2,184,101
1,544,790
2,001 ,1 38

900,450

$ 8,080,853
514,862

2,769,920
1,872,380
3,130,823
2,249,417
1,886,033
2,034,033

905,420

2013

$ 7,985,750
47',t,654

2,656,29'.1
1,885,205
3,007,643
2,456,195
1,730,853
2,108,545

874 988

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Operating Expenses
lnstruction
Public service
Academic support
Student services
lnstitutional support
Operation and maintenance of plant
Scholarship and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Non-Operating Expenses
Operational costs of leased property
Amortization of bond issuance costs
Loss on disposal of assets
lnterest and fees on capital related debt
Total Non-Operating Expenses

Total Expenses

Operating Expenses
lnstruction
Public service
Academic support
Student services
lnstitutional support
Operation and maintenance of plant
Scholarship and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Non-Operating Expenses
Operational costs of leased property
Amortization of bond issuance costs
Loss on disposal of assets
lnterest and fees on capital related debt
Total Non-Operating Expenses

24,057,404 22,788,247 22,707,381 23,357,820 23,443,741 23,177,124

2,961
47,692
50,582

232,494

2,949
47,692

4,381

7,021

3,672

3,498 3,008

14,198
4',t9,522 438 772

9,258

453,220
462,478

310,808 352,074
365,830 362,767333,729 437 218 441 780

$24,391,133 $23,'t54,077 $23,070,148 $23,795,038 $23,885,521 $23,639,602

For the Years Ended August 31,

201 8 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

37.32o/o

2.80%
10-82o/o

8.62o/o

15.34o/o

9.10o/o

3.05%
7.98%
3,61%

36.63%
2.55%

11.49o/o

8.84o/o

15.45%
9.29o/o

0.734/o

9.70o/o

3.760/o

36.66%
2.260/o

11.65%
8.77%

15.57%
9.24o/o

1.39o/o

9.150/o

3.75o/o

34.960/0

2.2lo/o
11.30o/o

8.16%
13.680/o

9.18o/o

6.49o/o

8.41%
3.78o/o

33.83%
2.160/o

11.60%
7.84o/o

13.11o/o

9.42o/o

7.90o/o

8.52o/o

3.79o/o

33.78o/o

2.00%
11.24o/o

7.97o/o

12.72o/o

10.39%
7.32%
8.92o/o

3.7Oo/"

98.63% 98.42% 98.43o/o 98.16%

0.01o/o

0.00%
0.06%
1.760/o

98.'l5o/o 98.O4o/"

0.04o/o

0.00%
0.00%
't.92%

0.01o/o

0.20Yo
0.21o/o

0.95%

O.01o/o

0.210/o

0.02o/o

1.34%

0.03%
0.00%
0.02%
1.53o/o

0.Q1o/o

0.00%
0.00%
1.84o/o

1.37o/o 1.58o/o 1.57o/o 1.84o/o 1.85o/o 't.96%

Total Expenses 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Note: Due to reporting format and definition changes prescribed by GASB 34/35, only fiscal years 2013 to 201 8 are reported

100.00% 't 00.00%
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Academic
Year
(Fall)

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

Academic
Year
(Fall)

ln-District
Tuition

Outof- District
Tuition

Institutional
Service

Fee

Student
Activity

Fee

Student
Activity

Fee

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

Cost for
12 SCH ln-

District

Cost for
12 SCH Out-

of-State

2,520.00

2,460.00

2,400.00

2,400.00

2,400.00

2,376.00

2,220.00

1,956.00

1,812.00

1.656.00

Cost for 12

SCH Out-of-
District

Cost for
12 SCH

lnternational

2,520.00

2,460.00

2,400.00

2,400.00

2,400.00

2,376.00

2,220.00

1,9s6.00

1 ,812.00

1,656.00

lncrease from
Prior Year Out-

of-District

3.57o/o

3.700/o

3.8570

0.00%

1.560/o

6.67o/o

11.11o/o

6.930/o

8.02o/o

#Dtv/0!

lncrease from
Prior Year Out-

of-District

2.44o/o

250%

0.00%

0.00%

1.01o/o

7.03%

13.50%

7.95o/o

9.42o/o

#Dtv/o!

Vernon Gollege
Statistical Supplement 4

Tuition and Fees
Last Ten Academic Years

(Unaudited)

Resident
Vernon Campus

Fees per Semester Credit Hour (SCH)

lncrease
from Prior
Year ln-
District

50.00

50.00

48.00

48.00

48.00

48.00

46.00

44.00

42.00

39.00

95.00

95.00

95.00

90.00

90.00

90.00

85.00

75.00

70.00

66.50

44.00

39.00

34.00

34.00

34.00

32.00

29.00

27.00

25.00

21.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

1,200.00

1,140.00

1,056.00

1,056.00

1,056.00

1,032.00

972.00

924.00

876.00

792.00

1,740.00

1,680.00

1,620.00

1,560.00

1,560.00

1,536.00

1,440.00

1,296.00

1,212.00

1,122.00

Non-Resident
Tuition

Out of State

Non-Resident
Tuition

lnternational

lnstitutional
Service

Fee

44.00

39.00

34.00

34.00

34.00

32.00

29.00

27.00

25.00

21.O0

5.260/o

7.95o/o

0.00%

0.00%

2.33o/o

6.17o/o

5.19o/o

5.48o/o

10.610/o

#Dtv/0!

2.44o/o

2.50o/o

0.00%

0.00%

1.01o/o

7.03o/o

13.50%

7.95o/o

9.42o/o

#Dtv/0!

lncrease
from Prior
Year In-
District

Non-Resident
Vernon Campus

Fees oer Semester Credit Hour (SCH)

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

160.00

160.00

160.00

160.00

160.00

160.00

150.00

130.00

120.00

1 1 1.00

160.00

160.00

160.00

160.00

160.00

160.00

150.00

130.00

120.00

111.00

Note: lncludes basic enrollment tuition and fees but excludes course based fees such as laboratory fees, testing fees, and certification fees.
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Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 5

Assessed Value and Taxable Assessed Value of Property
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year

Assessed
Valuation of

Property
Less:

Exemptions

Taxable
Assessed

Value (TAV)

Ratio of Taxable
Assessed Value

to Assessed
Value

Maintenance
and Debt

Operation Service Total
(a) (a)

0.23237 $ 0.00000 $ 0.23237

0.22965 0.00000 0.22965

0.22000 0.00000 0.22000

0.21767 0.00000 0.21767

0.22212 0.00000 0.22212

0.22285 0.00000 0.22285

0.22343 0.00000 0.22343

0.22672 0.00000 0.22672

0.22280 0.00000 0.22280

0.21737 0.00000 0.21737

2017-18 $

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11

2009-1 0

2008-09

1 ,898,393,1 60 $

1,910,924,250

1,982,985,410

1,859,401,310

1 ,818,956,660

1,595,309,430

1,523,966,580

1,498,674,530

1,529,569,880

1,456,143,210

739,419,390 $

737,749,860

746,032,540

654,132,720

636,775,446

608,833,820

615,9s1,780

611,389,270

626,657,640

529,537,760

't,158,973,770

1,173,174,390

1,236,952,870

1,205,268,590

1,182,181,214

986,475,610

908,014,800

887,285,260

902,912,240

926,605,450

61.05% $

61.39o/o

62.38o/o

64.82o/o

64.99o/o

61 .84o/o

59.s8%

59.20o/o

59.03%

63.63%

Source:

Notes:

Wilbarger County Appraisal District

Property is assessed at full market value.
(a) per $100 Taxable Assessed Valuation
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Fiscal
Year

State
Appropriations

State
Appropriations

Per FTSE

Academic
Contact
Hours

Voc/Tech
Contact
Hours

Total
Contact
Hours

Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 6

State Appropriations Per FTSE and Contact Hour
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Appropriation per FTSE Appronriation per Contact Hour

FTSE

State
Appropriation
Per Contact

Hour

2017-18
2016-17
201 5-1 6
2014-15
2013-14
2012-13
2011-12
2010-11
2009-1 0
2008-09

Notes:

5,596,132
5,592,000
5,586,382
5,511,466
5,511,466
5,525,348
5,852,020
5,454,584
5,521,976
5,453,123

1,912
2,058
1,898
1,959
2,376
2,335
2,259
2,720
2,420
2,106

2,927
2,717
2,944
2,814
2,319
2,366
2,591
2,006
2,282
2,589

73't,328
760,326
750,651

756,262
822,400
838,848
858,800
874,720
860,960
7s6,960

554,688
781,565
807,321

815,331

821,542
799,548
796,761

1,071,662
826,687
796,234

1,286,016
1,541,891
1,557,972
1,571,593
1,643,942
1,638,396
1,655,561
1,946,382
1,687,647
1 ,553,1 94

4.35
3.63
3.59
3.51
3.35
3.37
3.53
2.80
3.27
3.51

FTSE is calculated by dividing the SCH by 30 and non semester length technical contact
hours by 900.

State Appropriations include only the formula produced amounts for Academic and
Voc Tech Programs.
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Taxpayea

Electric Transmission of Texas
AEP Texas North Company
Blue Summit Wind, LLC
AEP Public Service Co of Oklahoma
Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority
Tyson Foods, lnc
Sharyland Utilities
Solvay (Rhodia), lnc
BNSF Railway
WT Waggoner Estate
Mahard Egg Fam
Blue Summit StoEge, LLC
Vemon FL, LLC
Walmart
JosephD&JoanPRogers
Oncor Electric Delivery

Totals

Total Assessed Taxable Value

Electric Transmission of Texas
AEP Texas North Company
Blue Summit Wind, LLC
AEP Public Servi€ Co of Oklahoma
Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority
Tyson Foods, lnc
Sharyland Utilities
Solvay (Rhodia), lnc
BNSF Railway
WT Waggoner Estate
Mahard Egg Fam
Blue Summit StoEge, LLC
Vernon FL, LLC
Walmart
JosephD&JoanPRogers
Oncor Electric Delivery

Type of
Business

Electricity Distribution
Energy @mpany
Wind Fam
Energy company
Energy company
Food prcessing plant
Electicity Distribution
Guar processing plant
Railroad @mpany
Faming, ranching, oil & gas
Egg farm
Electric Storage Batteries
Automobile Dealerships
Retail sales
Hotels
Electricity Distribution

Type of
Business

Electricity Distribution
Energy @mpany
Wind Farm
Energy @mpany
Energy company
Food prcessing plant
Electricity Distribution
Guar processing plant
Railroad company
Farming, mnching, oil & gas
Egg fam
Eleclric Storage Batteries
Automobile DealeEhips
Retail sales
Hotels
Electricity Distribution

2014

$ t60,198,710
127,769,200
97,310,980
61,374,230
35,287,030
35,198,870
33,'199,160
29,046,760
27,073,450
21,766,0'tO
18,862,920
13,473,950
10,485,550

8,1 98,060
6,642,330

$ 685,887,210

$ 1.173.174.390

2014

13.66%
10.890k

8.290/0

5.23o/o

3.O1o/o

3.00%
2.83Vo
3.00%
2.31o/o
't .860/o

1.6'10/o

1 .1 5o/o

0.89o/o

O.7Oo/o

O.57o/o

0.00o/o

58.99%

Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 7

Principal Taxpayers
Last Nine Tax Years

(Unaudited)

2016

$ 164,103,380
't47 J7A,48O
118,421,030
56,405,710
35,646,290
35,037,410

2017

$ 166,570,770
135,882,800
108,731,000

62,421,950
35,6 t2,300
34,969,900

20,841,560
24,359,830
22,620,360
15,174,420

10,560,580
7,516,210
7,116,O20

u,448,140

24,315,450
23,450,500
16,'144,770
14,O41,370

9,512,440

6,825,670
15,274,310

25,225,340
21,475,a40
26,874,080
1 6,885,140

21,923,OOO
21,588,920
29,790,920
'17,630,080

25,243,480
21,558,190
28,159,810
18,949,050

2012

$ 23,236,450
1 84,846,970

51,378,340
33,682,770
38,836,140

22,484,'120
19,890,160
30,417,350
18,677,420

2011

$ 10,913,990
'175,881,840

49,330,580
32,929,510
36,724,230

18,935,300
17,537,410
25,172,210
18,811 ,580

2010

9'186,347,390

58,018,740
30,694,140
27,432,650

1 7,946,960
14,756,370
25,087,580
19,967,630

Taxable Assessed Valuation CrAU by Tax Year
20't5 2014 2013

$ 147,972,970 $ 86,598,110 $ 43,382,620
16't,931,200 168,967,800 174,045,890
't45,060,550 166,668,370 191,173,2c,0
59,139,670 59,4A1,220 51,041,830
33,391,360 34,238,180 35,340,650
32,676,840 32,862,470 34,A25,270

_g__6792262!9_ s 666356810

_$!!gp!zfzg_ _$_!9919$99_

20,151,180'14,123,750

'17j45,400 13,384,910

$ 70ip29570 -$653p72F20 $63?Joqgoo

4,u2,510

-$ 451 s6, 2 30 T-8673? pso- 
-$ 3go-,Zsi5oo-

_$_q949s4q_ _$_99?p1?119_ _$sq€9!lgq_

2012 2011 20102017

$ 1,1A2181.214 _s_99929q9_ _9_999_ry_e90

Perentage Taxable Assessed Valuation OAV) by Tax Year
2016 2015 20'14 2013

13.470/o

10.99%
8.79o/o

5.05%
2_85%
2.43%
0.00%
2.83%
1.970k
1.830k
1.470k
0.00%
0.85%
0.61%
o.5a%
1.200k

13.620k
12.21o/o

9.83o/o

4.680/o

2.960/0

2.910
0.00o/o

2.9'lo/o

1.95o/o

1.34Vo
'1.160/0

0.00%
O.79o/o

0.00o/o

o.570/o
'1.270/"

'12.52Vo

13.7Oo/o

't2.27%
5.00%
2.42%
2.76%
0.00o/o

2.760/0

1.820k
2.27%
1.430k
0.000/o

1.700k
o.00%
0.00%
145%

8.74% 4.780/0
'17.'13% 19.170/o

16.90% 21.O50/o

6.030/6 5.620/o

3.47o/o 3.89o/o

3.330/o 3.840/o

0.00% 0.00o/o

3.33% 3.84o/o

2.19ok 2.37o/o

3.O2o/o 3.1oo/o
'1.790k 2.o90h
0.00o/o 0.0006
1.43% 0.000/6

0.000/6 0.00%
0.00% 0.000/6

0.000/6 1.47Yo

6739% 71-22%

2.620/o 1-21Vo 0.000/o
20.a3vo 19.480/0 20.,t10/o

0.00% 0.0006 0.00%
5.79Vo 5.46ok 6.26ok
3.80% 3.65% 3.310/0

43Aok 4.O70/o 2.960/o

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
4.38Vo 4.O7o/o 2.960/0

2.24o/o 'l.94Yo '1.590/6

3.43o/o 2.79Vo 2.7'l?/o

2.1'lo/o 2.O8Vo 2.150/o

0.000/0 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.000/o 0.00%
0.000/o 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.000/6 0.00%
0.930/o 0.00% 0.00%

50.49% 44.75% 4r;06%Totals 55 330/"

59

56.18% 60_51%



Vernon Gollege
Statistical Supplement 8

Property Tax Levies and Gollections
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year
Ended

Auoust 31.

Cumulative
Levy

Adiustment

$ (4,635)
(7,229)

(34,285)
(10,e6e)

(5,854)
(4,282)
(2,703)
(5,413)
(2,036)
(5,4O2)

Adjusted
Tax Levy

(b)

$ 2,687,255
2,688,759
2,688,170
2,612,187
2,619,858
2J93,941
2,O25,734
2,O12,811
2,0O8,407
2,008,760

Collections
Year of

Levy
(c)

$ 2,645,921
2,648,263
2,643,759
2,574,026
2,541,707
2,116,137
1,986,272
1,966,566
1,962,237
1,961,432

Percentage

Prior
Collections of
Prior Levies

(d)

Current
Collections of
Prior Levies

(e)

Total
Collections

(c+d+e)

$ 2,645,921
2,664,356
2,670,710
2,600,574
2,611,379
2,187,380
2,018,901
2,005,654
2,003,152
2,002,310

Cumulative
Collections of
Adiusted Lew

98.46%
99.09%
99,35%
99.56%
99.68%
99.70o/o

99.66%
99.640/o

99.74%
99.68%

Levy
(a)

2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009

16,093
5,531
'l,478

876
489
296
375
211

83

$ 2,691,890
2,695,988
2,722,455
2,623,156
2,625,712
2,198,223
2,O28,437
2,018,225
2,010,444
2,014,162

9846%
98.49%
98.35%
98.54o/o

97.O2%
96.45o/o

98.05%
97.70o/o

97.70o/o

97.640/o

21,420
25,O70
68,796
70,754
32,333
38,713
40,704
40,795

$ $

Source: Local Tax Assessor /Collector and District Records
(a) As reported in notes to the financial statements for the year of the levy
(b) As of August 31st of the current reporting year
(c) Property tax only - does not include penalties and interest
(d) Represents cumulative collections of prior years not collected in the current year or the year of the tax levy
(e) Represents current year collections of prior year levies
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Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 9

Ratios of Outstanding Debt
Last Ten Yearc

(Unaudited)

For the Years Ended 31
201A 2016 2015 2014 2012 2011

$ 8,686,183 $ 9,278,365 $ 9,835,547 $10,285,000 $'10,760,000 $ 11,225,000 $11,680,000 $12,125,000

134.734 41 8.1 03 565.880 704.274 833,'132 952,991

$ 12,632,991

1.064.363

$ 8.820.917 $10,253,650 $10,850,880 $11,464,274 $12,058,132 $ 13.189.363

2010

$ 6,540,000 $ 6,845,000Revenue bonds

Notes

Capital lease obligations

Total Outstanding Debt

Total Outstanding Debt Ratios

Per Capita

Per FTSE

As a percentage of Taxable
Assessed Value

297,141

$ 9,57s,506

1 ,167,734 1 ,263,029

_$l :? 0?f u_ _$_qJ_q999_

not available

4,613

0.7611o/o

750.20

4,653

O.81620/o

785.06

5,402

O.82890/"

832.9s

5.539

0.9003%

883.70

4,825

0.9698%

918.30

5,164

1.2223o/o

952.86

5,592

1.3913%

976.27

4,849

1.4865%

562.98

3,185

o.85370

568.31

3,850

0.8750%

Notes: Ratios calculated using population and TAV from cunent year. Debt per student using full-time equivalent enrollment.
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Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 10

Legal Debt Margin lnformation
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)

Taxable Assessed Valuation

General Obligation Bonds

Statutory iax levy limit for debt
service

Less funds restricted for
repayment of bonds

Total Net General Obligation Debt

Current year debt service
requirement

Excess of statutory limit for debt
service over current requirement

Net current requirement as a
percentage of statutory limit

For ihe 31
2017 2016 2013 2012 20'lo 2009

$1,158,973,770 $1,173,174,390 _$!gq9!?.929_ _$lt9!t99,599_ $1.182.181.214 S 986.475 6r0 $ 908,014,800 $ 887,285,260 $902,912,240 $ 926,605,450

$5,794,869$5,865,872$6,184,764$6,026,343$5,910,906$4,932,378$4,540,074$4,436,426$4,514,56.1$4,633,027

5,794,869 5,865,872 6,184,764 6,026,343 5,910,906 4,932,37A 4,540,O74 4,436,426 4,514,561 4,633,O27

$ 5 7S4 869 $ 5,865,872 $ 6,184,764 $ 6,026,343 $ 5,910.906 $ 4.932.378 $ 4,540,074 $ 4,436,426 $ 4,514,561 $ 4,633,027

0 000/. 0.00% 0.00o/o 0.000/o 0 O0o/o 0 OOo/n 0.00% 0.00% 0-00o/o 0 000/o

Note: Vernon College has had no outstanding General Obligation Bond Debt for over ten years
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Vernon Gollege
Statistical Supplement 1 1

Pledged Revenue Goverage
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)

Revenues
Laboratory/ General

Tuition Special Fee Reqistration Fees Lease Revenue lncome Total

Debt Service Requirements

lnterest Total

Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year
Ended August 31

2018

2017

2016

2015

20't4

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

$ 4,922,682

5,224,450

5,142,O37

5,530,916

6,070,149

5,749,880

5,431,705

5,091 ,415

4,737,506

4,27',t,778

$ 758,392

696,102

680,853

650,1 71

657,547

659,514

678,1 38

689,749

681,811

1,011,005

6,028,849

5,336,948

4,732,292

4,358,436

3,771,494

3,702,329

3,506,215

3,246,9',tz

2,888,778

1,656,588

28,977

24,788

24,929

18,516

14,'158

17,161

60,461

65,825

't68,044

410,698

$ 52,710

11,875

11,506

18,732

19,72',1

42,379

29,086

80,272

79,481

97,183

$1 1 ,791 ,610

11,294,'t63

10,591 ,617

10,576,771

10,533,069

10,171,262

9,705,605

9,174,172

8,555,620

7,447,252

Principal

$ 590,000

555,000

485,000

475,000

465,000

455,000

445,000

450,000

305,000

290,000

$ 2't9,322

256,1 90

224,98'l

388,325

399,1 1 9

409,700

419,931

417,997

327,650

355,297

$ 809,322

811,190

709,981

863,325

864,1 19

864,700

864,931

867,997

632,650

645,297

Coverage
Ratio

14.57

13.92

't4.92

12.25

12.19

11.76

11.22

10.57

13.52

11.54

$ $

63



Vernon College
Statistical Supplem ent 12

Demographic and Economic Statistics - Taxing District (Wilbarger Gounty)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Calendar
Year

District
Population

District
Personal

lncome (a)
(thousands
of dollars)

District
Personal
lncome

Per
Capita

District
Unemployment

Rate
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009

Not Available
12,764
13,061
13,027
12,973
1 3,1 31

13,258
13,258
13,510
13,691

$$

b

504,714
505,617
493,319
506,917
533,490
505,562
472,359
463,963
441,218

b

39,542
38,712
37,869
39,075
40,628
38,1 33
35,628
34,342
32,227

5.1To

4.3o/o

4.8o/o

5.SYo

5.5%
4.9o/o

5.8%
6.2To

6.1%
7.0%

Sources:
Bureau of Economic Analysis
Unemployment rate via Google search

Notes:
a. Taxing District = Wilbarger County
b. Not yet available
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Vernon Gollege
Statistical Supplement 1 3

Principal Employers
Fiscal Year 2018

(Unaudited)

Number of
Employees

Percentage
of Total

Employment (1)Employer

Tyson Foods, lnc
HospitalHome Health
Vernon City Hall
Vernon College
Vernon Public Schools
United Supermarket
Walmart
Wilbarger General Hospital
Covenant Care of Vernon
Eagle Flats Village
Herring Bank
McDonalds
Rhodia
Waggoner National Bank

1 000+
500 - 999
100-499
100 - 499
100 - 499
100 - 499
100 - 499
100 - 499
100 - 499
50-99
50-99
50-99
50-99
50-99
50-99

17.49%
10.50%
4.20o/o

4.20o/o

4.20o/o

4.20o/o

4.20Yo
4.20o/o

4.20%
1.05%
1.05%
1.05o/o

1.05Yo

1.05o/o

1.05%

Total 2450-5686

Source:
Employer search http://socrates.cdr.state.tx.us/, November 201 7
Labor Force - Socrates County Narrative Profile, November 2017

Note

1. Percentages are calculated using the midpoints of the ranges.

63.69%
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Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 14

Facu lty, Staff, and Ad mi n istrators Statistics
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)

2018 2017 2015

97
78

91

68
175 159

Fiscal Year Ended 31
2014 2013

75
't63

83
80

81

76
81

81
163 157 162

2011

SOYo

5oo/o

143
4

147

97o/o

2,720
33.58
19.02

$ 3,558,609
$ 43,933

2010

88
165

Faculty
FT
PT
Total

rcentPe
FT
PT

86
81

90
86

74
75

7788

167 176 149

Staff & Adm
FT
PT
Total

FTSE
FT Faculty
FT Staff

Fac Sal
Avg. Fac

1,912
22.23
13.46

$ 4,571,565
$ 53,158

2,058
22.87
14.19

$ 4,803,176
$ 53,369

2,335
28.13
16.56

$ 3,809,445
$ 45,897

2,259
27.89
16.14

$ 3,794,882
$ 46,850

142 145
2 2

144
3

148 148

98% 98%
2o/o

1,959
21.53
13.51

2,376
27.00
16.39

$ 4,666,619
$ 51,282

$ 4,357,658
$ 49,519

51o/o

49o/o

99o/o

1o/o

51o/o

49%

99o/o

1o/o

55Yo

45o/o

143
3

146

98%

1,898
19.57
13.27

57o/o

43%

145

54o/o

46%
51%
49o/o

52o/o

48o/o

145
3

141 140
4 5

145 145

97o/o 97%
3o/o

47o/o

53o/o

139
I

148

94o/o

2,420
31.43
17.41

$ 3,373,083
$ 43,806

50o/o

5Oo/o

136

136

10oo/o

QYo

Percent

6Yo3o/o3%2Yo2o/o

FT
PT

955
587

74, 12,
48,

$
$

2,106
28.46
15.49

$ 3,235,850
$ 43,728

66



Fall2017

Vernon College
Stitistical Supplement 15

Enrollment Details
Last Five Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Fall 2016 Fall20'15 Fall2o14 Fall 201 3Credit

Student Classification Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

0 - 30 hours

31 - 60 hours

> 60 hours

2320

392

296

77.130k

13.O30/o

9.840h

't967

567

439

66.160/o

19.O70k

14.7704

72.33%

2O.75o/o

6.92%

68.38%

24.54%

3.08%

2'105

884

68.26Vo

28.660/0

3 08%

2091

600

200

2044

853

92

Total 3008 100.000/6

Fall 2017

2973 100.00% 2891 100.00% 2989 100.00% 3084 100.00%

Fall 2016 Fall2O15 Fall2O14 Fall 2013Non-Credit

Student Classification Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

CEU Students Only

0 - 30 hours

31 - 60 hours

> 60 hours

1014

356

100

25

06z

262

70

37

1 034

309

102

62

876

274

96

4a

65.89%

23.130k

6.50%

't.62%

64.21%

25.410k

6.790

3.59%

68.61%

20.500k

6.77o/a

4.'t1%

67.7Oo/o

21.17%

7.420/0

3.710

1 089

280

109

71.O40

18.260/o

7.110/o

3.590/.

Total

44

1539 97 1 40/o 1031 100.00% 1507 100.00% 1294 100.00% '1533 100.00%

Fall 2017 Fall 2016 Fall 2Ol 5 Fall2O14 Fall 201 3

Semester Hour Load Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Less than 3

3-5semesterhours

6-Esemesterhours

9 - '11 semester hours

1 2 - 14 semester hours

15 - 17 semester hours

18 & over

7

526

905

510

794

25s

11

o.23Vo

17.49vo

30.09%

16.95%

26/0%

8.480/0

O.37o/o

18

493

908

545

805

192

12

0.61%

16.58%

30.54%

'1 8.330/6

27.OAo/o

6.46Vo

0.400/0

o.'t7vo

17 .7 40/o

30.09%

16.64Vo

28.71Vo

6.19o/o

0.45%

't7

48'l

885

875

188

10

513

870

481

830

179

13

o.57%

16.09%

29.610

17.830/0

29.27Vo

6.29o/o

0.33%

15

550

843

577

185

9

O.49o/o

17.83Vo

27.33%

14.7'lo/o

29.35%

6.00%

O.29o/o

Sub-Total SCH Students 3008 100.00% 2973 100.000/o 2491 100 000/6 2989 100.00% 3084 100.00%

Average SCH course load

Non-Credit CEU Studonts

Total

8.848.938.928.898.99

1 539 103't 1507 1294 1 533

4547 4004 4398 4243 4617

Fall2017 Fall 20l6 Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall 2013Credit

Tuilion Stalus Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Texas Resident (in-district)

Texas Resident (ou!of-dist)

Non-Resident Tuition

290

2669

9.710k

89.38%

0.90%

249

2686

38

8.38%

90.35%

1 2Ao/.

272

2566

53

9.410/o

88.76%

1 430/0

25'l

2699

39

8.400/.

90.30%

1 300/o

243

2805

36

7.88o/o

90.95%

1.17o/o

Total 2986 100.00% 2973 100.000/6 2891 100.00% 2989 100 000/0 3084 100.00%

Fall 2017 Fall 2016 Fall 2o15 Fall2O'14 Fall 2013Non-Credit

Tuition Status Number Percnt Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

CEU Students Only

CEU Contract & Non-Contract

CEU Contract Only

CEU Non-Contract Only

0

2

'to32

505

0.000/o

o.13%

67.O60/o

32.81%

0

0

842

189

0.00%

0.00%

81.670/0

18.33olo

0

15

1331

'161

0.00%

l.OOo/o

88.32Vo

10.68%

0

856

435

0.00%

o.230

66.1 5%

33.620/0

0.00%

1.04%

77.560/o

21.40%

0

16

'! 189

328

Total 1539 100.000/6 1031 '100.00%

67

1507 100.00% 1294 100.00% 1533 100.00%



Fall2017

Vernon Gollege
Statistical Supplement 1 6

Student Profile
Last Five Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Fall 2016 Fall 2015 Fall2014 Fall 20'13

Gender Number Percent Number Percent Number Percenl Number Percent Number Percent

Female

Male

2574

1973

2432

1572

60.74%

39.260/o

2532

1 866

2573

1710

56.61o/o

43.39o/o

57 .57o/o

42.430k

60.O7o/o

39.93%

2829

1788

61,27%

38.73o/o

Total 4547 100.00% 4004 100.00% 4398 100.00% 4243 100.00% 4617 100.000/o

Fall 2017 Fall 2016 Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall2013

Ethnic Origin Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

White

Hispanic

African American

Asran

Foreign

Native American

Other

2554

828

353

67

8

45

149

2960

784

346

78

11

?o

'180

2922

987

358

82

0

35

163

64.26Vo

21.710

7.87o/o

1.8Oo/o

0.00%

0.77%

3.58o/o

63.79o/o

20.680/o

8.82Yo

1.67Yo

O.2Oo/o

1 .12o/o

3.72o/o

67.30%

17.83%

7.87%

1.77o/o

O.25o/o

0.89Yo

4.O9o/o

2900

765

350

65

4

36

163

67.71%

17.86%

8.17o/o

1 .52o/o

0.09%

0.84%

3.81o/o

31 00

712

439

82

0

53

231

67 .14o/o

15.42o/o

9.51o/o

1.78Yo

0.00%

L150k

5.000/o

Total 4547 100.00% 4004 100.00% 4398 100.00% 4283 100.00% 46'17 100.00o/o

Fall2Ol7 Fall 2016 Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall 2013

Age (Credit Students) Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Under 1 I
18-21

22-24

25-35

36-50

51 & over

613

1 150

323

635

243

44

584

1 159

325

627

236

42

506

1097

398

682

320

81

20.38o/o

38.23Yo

10.74o/o

21.11o/o

8 08%

1.46Yo

19.64%

38.98%

10.93%

21.O9Yo

7 .94o/o

1.41o/o

524

1 069

362

647

248

41

18.13o/o

36.98%

12.52%

22.38Yo

8.58%

1 .42o/o

447

1073

363

746

301

59

14 55%

35.9070

12.14%

24.960/o

10.o70/o

1 .97o/o

16.41Yo

35.570h

12.91o/o

22.11o/o

10.38%

2.630/o

Total 3008 100.00% 2973 100.007o 2891 100.00% 2989 100.00% 3084 100.00%

Average Age 2323 24.0

Fall 2015

25.0 25.0

Fall2017 Fall 2016 Fall 2014 Fall 2013

Age (Non-Credit Students) Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Under 18

1A-21

22 -24

25-35

36-50

51 & over

353

134

84

327

346

295

22.94o/o

8.71Yo

5.46%

21.25o/o

22.48o/o

19.17o/o

264

132

69

236

176

154

25.61%

12.80o/o

6.69%

22.89Yo

17.07%

14.94o/o

297

119

107

320

361

303

279

't47

102

262

258

246

21 .560/o

11.360/o

7.88%

20.25%

19.94o/o

19.O1Vo

308

146

115

277

342

345

20.09%

9.52Yo

7.500k

18.O7o/o

22.31%

22.5Oo/o

19.71To

7 .9Oo/o

7.10%

21.23%

23.95o/o

20.11o/o

Total 1539 100.00% 1031 100.00% 1507 100.00% 1294 100.00% 1533 100.000/o

33.0 35.0Average Age 34.0 31.0
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Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 17

Transfers to Senior lnstitutions
2016 Fall Students as of Fall2017

(lncludes only public senior colleges in Texas)
(Unaudited)

Transfer
Student
Count

Academic

Transfer
Student
Count

Technical

Totalof
allSample

Transfer
Students

o/o of
allSample
Transfer
Students

1

2
3

4
5

6
7

8

I
10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
21

22

5

297
1

2
7

17

11

1

1

Angelo State University
Midwestern State University
Prairie View A&M University
Sam Houston State University
Stephen F. Austin State University
Tarleton State University
Texas A&M University
Texas A&M University - Corpus Christi
Texas A&M University - Galveston
Texas A&M University - San Antonio
Texas State University - San Marcos
Texas Tech University
Texas Woman's University
The University of Texas at Arlington
The University of Texas at Austin
The University of Texas at Dallas
The University of Texas at San Antonio
The University of Texas at Tyler
The University of Texas of the Permian Basin
University of Houston - Victoria
University of North Texas
West Texas A&M University

36

3

5

333
1

2
7

20
11

I
1

1

6
42
10
22
11

6
1

1

3

2
28
13

0.95%
63.19%

0.19%
0.38%
1.33o/o

3.80%
2.09o/o

0.19o/o

0.19o/o

0.19o/o

1.14o/o

7.97o/o

1.90%
4.17o/o

2.09o/o

1.14o/o

0.19o/o

0.19o/o

0.57o/o

0.38o/o

5.31o/o

2.47o/o

To.oo-.z.527

1

51
375
82

166
10 1

6
1

1

3

2
27 1

10 3

___Tt ___E
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Vernon College
Statistical Supplement 1 8
Capital Asset lnformation
Fiscal Years 2014 to 2O18

(Unaudited)

FiscalYears

Academic Buildings
Square footage

Libraries
Square footage
Number of volumes

Administrative and support buildings
Square footage

Dormitories
Square footage
Number of beds

Dining Facilities
Square footage
Average daily customers

Athletic Facilities
Square footage
Stadiums
Gymnasiums
Fitness Centers
Tennis Courts

Plant Facilities
Square footage

Transportation
Cars
Light trucks/vans
Buses

2
27,214

156

2
27,214

156

2018

6
298,529

1

3,500
33,719

1

28,287

1

10,170
250

1

11,000

2017 2016 2015 2014

39
6

987
3

1

2
6

6
298,529

1

3,500
33,719

1

28,287

1

10,170
250

1

11,000

6
298,529

1

3,500
33,719

1

28,287

2
27,214

156

1

10,170
250

1

11,000

6
298,529

1

3,500
33,719

1

28,287

2
27,214

156

1

10,170
250

1

11,000

6
298,529

1

3,500
33,719

1

28,287

2
27,214

156

1

10,170
250

1

11,000

39
6

39,987
3

1

2
6

6
39,987

3

I
2
6

o
987

3
1

2
6

6
39,987

3
1

2
6

3

15

3

3
14

3

3

14

3

3
14

3

3

14

3
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Overall Compliance, lnternal Controls and Federal Awards Section



EocIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FI.emlruc ,PC
CeRlrtEo PueLrc AccouNTANTS

41 10 KELL BLvo., SecoruD FLooR P.O. Box 750
Wtcnrrn FRlls, Texns 76307-0750
PH. (940) 766-5550 Fnx (940) 766-5778

Mrcnnel D. EDGIN, CPA
Dnvo L. Pnnrunru, CPA
A. Pnul Fleurruc, CPA

lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reportinq and on
Comoliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed ln Accordance With Goyernmenf Audrtlnq Sfandards

Board of Trustees
Vernon College
Vernon, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Vernon College and its
discretely presented component unit, Vernon College Foundation, lncorporated, as of and for the year
ended August 31,2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Vernon College's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2018.

Internal Gontrol Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Vernon College's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Vernon College's internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Vernon College's internal control.

A deficiency in internal controlexists when the design or operatron of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material ureakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
materialweakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Vernon College's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported u nder Goye rn me nt Aud iti n g Sta n dards.

Public Funds lnvestment Act

We have performed tests designed to verify Vernon College's compliance with the requirements of the
Public Funds lnvestment Act. During the year ended August 31,2018, no instances of noncompliance were
noted.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Sfandards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

December 19,2018
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EOCIITI, PARKMAN , FLEMINc & FIrvlruc, PC
Centtrreo PueLrc AccoUNTANTS

41 10 KELL Br-vo., SecoruD FLooR P.O. Box 750
WrcnrrR FRlls, Texns 76307-0750
Pn. (940) 766-5550 . Fnx (940) 766-5778

MtcHREl D. Eocrru, CPA
Dnvto L. Pnnrunru, CPA

A. Pnul Flerarruc, CPA

lndependent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Proqram
and on lnternal Control over Compliance Required bv the Uniform Guidance

and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular

Board of Trustees
Vernon College
Vernon, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Vernon College's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Compliance Supplement and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular that could have a direct
and material effect on Vernon College's major federal and state programs for the year ended August 31,
2018. Vernon College's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

M a n agem enf 's Respon s i b i I ity

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its federal and state programs.

A u d ito r's Respon s i b i I ity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Vernon College's major federal and state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federat
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requiremenfs, Cosf Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. Those standards, the
Uniform Guidance, and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Vernon College's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal
and state programs. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on Vernon College's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

ln our opinion, Vernon College complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal and state programs for the year ended
August 31,2018.
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Report on lnternal Control Over Gompliance

Management of Vernon College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered Vernon College's internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance and the State of
Texas Single Audit Circular, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Vernon College's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program on a timely basis. A materiatweakness in internat control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for
any other purpose.

Respectfu lly submitted,

t a*,3orL^,?Pt";*{ : t!.,,;*b,? (
EDGIN, PARKMAN, FLEMING & FLEMING, PC

December 19,2018
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VERNON COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2018

A. Summarv of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

lnternal control over financial reporting

Material weakness(es) identified?

Control deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be materialweaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

2. Federaland State Awards

lnternal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Control deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be materialweaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported under CFR Section 200.516(a)
of Uniform Guidance and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular?

ldentification of major programs:
Federal Programs:

Student Financial Aid Cluster:
Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (FSEOG)
Federal Work-Study Program (FWS)
Federal PellGrant Program (Pell)
Federal Direct Student Loans (Direct Loan)

State Program:
Skills Development Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B federal programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B state programs:

Unmodified

None Reported

No

No

Unmodified

No

CFDA Number

84.007
84.033
84.063
84.268

N/A

$750,000

$300,000

X Yes _No

No

No

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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'.HEDULE 
or nruoYrF*X?f Sro*i=rRED cosrs (coNr.D.)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2018

B. FinancialStatementFindinqs

None

C. FederalAward Findinos and Questioned Costs

None
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There are no findings in the current year

VERNON COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2018
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VERNON COLLEGE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2018

There were no findings in the prior year
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